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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present 35th Annual 
Report together with Audited Statement of 
Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March 2018. These financial statements are the 
first financial statements of the Company under 
Ind AS.

I. Financial Highlights
(R in Lakhs)

2017-18 2016-17

Revenue from operations (Net of Excise*) 85,041.57 77,934.09

Other Income 558.95 378.47

Total revenue 85,600.52 78,312.56

EBIDTA 6,933.77 10,108.95

EBIDTA Margin (%) 8.20 13.00

Finance Costs 2,792.76 2,272.52

Depreciation and amortization expense 3,297.38 3,027.25

Profit before tax 843.63 4,809.18

Current tax 182.70 984.49

Deferred tax (139.12) (229.18)

Profit after tax 800.05 4,053.87

Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax

(5.87) (53.41)

Total comprehensive income for the year 794.18 4,000.46

Earning per share (Basic & Diluted) R 2.02 10.33

* Revenue from operations includes other operative income.

II.  Dividend

 In order to conserve resources of the 
Company, the Board has not recommended 
dividend on equity shares.

III.  Performance and Outlook

 During the year under review, revenue from 
operations (Net of Excise) & other operative 
income at R 85,041.57 Lakhs was as 
compared to R 77,934.09 Lakhs for previous 
year. Exports during the financial year 2017-
18 were of R 27,398.35 lakhs as compared to  
R 16,665.28 lakhs during the previous year.

 Performance of textile industry was affected 
due to introduction of The Goods and Service 
Tax (GST) during the year, lingering impact 
of demonetization of certain currency note 
in the previous year and increase in price 
of Nylon chips, the raw materials for Nylon 
yarn.

 The Surat based textile industry reeled 
under GST impact, utilization of production 

capacity was therefore down during the year. 
Several traders and weavers did not initially 
get registered under GST, thereby affecting 
sales. Strike by textile industry in Surat and 
other places for protesting GST has affected 
sales of high margin products.

 Increase in prices of the raw materials due 
to increase in price of crude has affected 
performance of the Company.

 The Company now concentrates on polyester 
yarn rather than Nylon yarn, production of 
high quality products, increasing efficiency 
and utilisation of installed capacity, increase 
in customers and exports, etc.

 The Company continuously develops new 
products to have better margin of profits.

 The expansion project at an estimated project 
cost of R 76.50 crores for installation of 
spinning line, texturised machinery, sewing 
thread set up is under progress and is likely 
to be completed by the end of September 
2018.

 The Company has further undertaken 
expansion programme at an estimated 
project cost of R 119 Crores to increase 
capacity of BCF yarn, manufacture new 
products by installing high tenacity lines, 
Nylon POY line, texturised machine, sewing 
thread set up and multiple yarn machines.

 During the year, your Company’s long term 
credit rating and short term credit rating 
has been reaffirmed by CARE as CARE A 
and CARE A1 respectively. India Rating and 
Research Private Limited has reaffirmed 
rating of IND A for long term loans and fund 
based working capital facilities and IND A 1 
for non-fund based working capital facilities.

Share Capital and Listing

a. Preferential issue of equity shares

 63,50,000 equity shares of R 10 each at a 
premium of R 65 each issued and allotted 
to Mandawewala Enterprises Limited on 
preferential basis has been listed by BSE on 
26th April 2018 and NSE on 13th April 2018.

 43,16,666 warrants of R 75 each issued 
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and allotted to Mandawewala Enterprises 
Limited are convertible into equity shares 
of R 10 each at premium of R 65 per share 
at the option of holder of the warrant in the 
ratio of 1:1 within 18 months from the date 
of allotment.

 There is no deviation in the utilization of funds 
raised through the said equity/warrant from 
the purpose mentioned in the explanatory 
statement of the Notice convening Extra 
Ordinary General meeting held on 28th 
February 2018.

b. Issue of Employee Stock Options

 The Shareholders of the Company has 
approved AYM ESOP scheme 2018 ("the 
scheme") for issue of 9,80,989 equity shares 
under the scheme at Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on 28th February 2018; BSE 
has accorded In-principle approval for issue 
and allotment of the said shares on 26th April 
2018 and NSE approved on 27th April 2018.

 Your Director's at their meeting held on 13th 
August 2018 has granted 980,800 Equity 
Shares of R10 each at par under the said 
scheme to managerial personnel of the 
Company, vesting period is over a period of 
5 years as per the scheme.

IV. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

 a. In the preparation of the annual 
accounts, the applicable Accounting 
Standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material 
departures;

 b. The Directors had selected such 
accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at 
the end of the financial year 31st March 
2018 and of the profit and loss of the 
Company for that period;

 c. The Directors had taken proper and 
sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

 d. The Directors had prepared the annual 
accounts on a going concern basis;

 e.   The Directors have laid down internal 
financial controls to be followed by 
the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and 
were operating effectively; and

 f. The Directors had devised proper 
systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

V. Disclosure as Required Under the 
Companies Act, 2013

 a. Mr. Atul Desai, Mr. M. K. Tandon, 
Ms. Mala Todarwal and Mr. K. H. 
Viswanathan, the independent Directors 
have given declaration that they met 
the criteria of independent Directors as 
provided in sub section 6 of Section 149 
of the Companies Act, 2013;

 b. Policy on Directors' appointment and 
remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence of a Director 
and other matters provided under sub-
section (3) of section 178 is placed 
on website of the Company and web 
link thereto is http://www.aymsyntex.
com/up loads /s l ider /nomina t ion-
a n d - r e m u n e r a t i o n - p o l i c y _ a s l - 1 -
0152884001473234325.pdf

 c. In compliance with the Act and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation, 2015, the Board 
of Directors, as per the process 
recommended by the Nomination 
and Remuneration committee, has 
evaluated the effectiveness of the Board, 
its committees and individual Directors 
and all the results were satisfactory;
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 d. The CSR policy of our Company as 
approved by the Board of Directors’ 
is hosted on the Company’s website 
and web link thereto is http://www.
aymsyntex.com/userfiles/file/CSR%20
Policy.pdf. Disclosure as required under 
Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed as Annexure A;

 e.  Meeting of Board of Directors were 
conducted six times during the financial 
year 2017-18.

 f. The Company is a subsidiary of 
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited.

 g. Ratio of remuneration of Mr. B. A. Kale  
(Upto 6th May 2017) and Mr. Abhishek 
R. Mandawewala, the Directors to the 
median employee’s remuneration and 
other details are as under:

Name Designation Remuner-
ation

%  
Increase

Ratio of Re-
muneration 
to Median 
Remuner-
ation of 

employees 
(No. of 
times)

Mr. B.A. Kale Executive 
Director (upto 
6th May 2017)

138.57 NA1 102.06

Mr. Abhishek 
Mandawewala

Managing 
Director and 
CEO (w.e.f. 
6th May 2017)

117.70 3.9% 66.09

Mr. Himanshu 
Dhaddha

Chief  
Financial 
Officer

67.22 NA2 37.75

Mr. Kaushik 
Kapasi

Company 
Secretary

41.94 NIL 23.55

1. Resigned w.e.f. 6th May 2017 and hence % increase is not computable. 
2. Joined on 8th November 2016 and hence %increase is not computable. 

 Notes : 

  i. Average increase in remuneration 
of employees other than 
managerial personnel : 6.0% and 
managerial persons :3.0%

  ii. The number of permanent 
employees on the rolls of 
Company: 1594

  iii. The percentage increase in 
the median remuneration of 
employees in FY 2017-18 was 
4.8%.

  iv. Affirmation that the remuneration 
is as per the remuneration policy 
of the Company.

 h. Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala, 
Managing Director & CEO and Mr. 
B. A. Kale, Executive Director (upto 
May 6 2017) of the Company have 
not received any remuneration from 
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited, the 
holding company.

 i. Details in respect of adequacy of 
Internal Financial Controls (IFC) with 
reference to the Financial Statements:

   Your Company has designed and 
implemented a framework for internal 
finance controls and the same 
are adequate and were operating 
effectively. The Company periodically 
reviews the internal controls to align it 
with the changing business needs and 
to improve governance and enhance 
compliance with evolving regulation.

   Your Company has well documented 
Standard Operating Procedures 
(SOPs) for various processes which 
are periodically reviewed for changes 
warranted by business needs. The 
Internal Auditors continuously monitor 
the efficiency of the internal controls 
/ compliance with the SOPs with the 
objective of providing to the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors, 
an independent, objective and 
reasonable assurance of the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the organisation’s 
risk management, control and 
governance processes.

   For the year ended 31st March 2018, 
the Board is of the opinion that your 
Company has sound IFC commensurate 
with the nature of its business 
operations, wherein adequate controls 
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are in place and operating effectively 
and no material weakness exists. Your 
Company has a process in place to 
continuously monitor existing controls 
and identify gaps and implement new 
and / or improved controls wherever 
the effect of such gaps would have 
a material effect on your Company’s 
operation.

 j. Particulars of contracts or arrangements 
with related parties:

  All related party transactions that were 
entered into during the year under 
report were on an arm’s length basis 
and were in the ordinary course of 
business, to serve mutual need and 
mutual interest. Form AOC 2 pursuant 
to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 is annexed as Annexure B. The 
Audit Committee has given its omnibus 
approval which is valid for one financial 
year. Your Company’s policy on related 
party transactions as approved by the 
Board is hosted on your Company’s 
website and a weblink thereto is http://
www.aymsyntex.com/uploads/slider/
related-parties-transaction-policy_asl-
0334404001465570841.pdf. The details 
of the related party transactions are set 
out in Note 47 to the financial statements 
forming part of this report.

 k.  Particulars of loans, guarantees or 
investments under section 186:

  The Company has not granted any 
loans or provided any guarantees 
or security under section 186 of The 
Companies Act during the financial 
year. However, the Company has made 
investment of R70,75,880/- by acquiring 
7,07,588 class A Equity Shares of R10 
each of Sai Wardha Power Generation 
Limited during the financial year. The 
said investment is included under 
the heading Security Deposit under 
Note-15 in the Financial Statements in 
accordance with the requirements of 
Ind AS - 32 'Financial Instrument'. 

 l.  Details of establishment of vigil 
mechanism for Directors and 
employees as per Regulation 22 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), 2015:

  The Company has a Whistle Blower 
Policy and Vigil Mechanism for its 
Directors and employees and no 
personnel have been denied access to 
Mr. Atul Desai, Chairman of the Audit 
Committee.

VI. Extract of Annual Return

An extract of Annual Return report in Section 
92 of The Indian Companies Act, 2013 is 
placed on website of the Company and a 
weblink thereto is: http:\\www.aymsyntex.com/
uploads/slider/doc00901720180810172707.
pdf.

VII. Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo

 a. Conservation of energy:

  i. The steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy:

   The Company has taken several 
steps for improving efficiency 
of Utilities, repairing insulation 
lines, attending air leakage in POY 
division and Utility, etc. and saved 
4473 units per day at Rakholi plant.

  ii.  The steps taken by the Company 
for utilizing alternate sources of 
energy: Nil

  iii. The capital investment on energy 
conservation equipments: Nil

 b. Technology absorption:

  i. The efforts made towards 
technology  absorption: Nil

  ii. The benefits derived like product 
improvement, cost reduction, 
product development or import 
substitution: Nil

  iii. In case of imported technology 
(imported during the last three 
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years reckoned from the beginning 
of the financial year): Nil

  iv. Research and Development 
expenditures:

R in Lakhs

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Revenue expenditure 592.79 621.27
Capital expenditure 513.99 649.72
Total 1106.78 1270.99

 c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

  The Foreign Exchange earned in terms 
of actual inflows during the year and 
the Foreign Exchange outgo during the 
year in terms of actual outflows.

  Earning in Foreign exchange – 
R 27398.35 Lakhs

  Outgo in Foreign exchange – 
R 22029.44 Lakhs

VIII. Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

 Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala being the 
longest in duration is liable to retire by 
rotation at the 35th Annual General Meeting. 
He holds the office of Managing Director 
and CEO upto 31st July 2018. The Board 
of Directors at their meeting held on 21st 
May 2018 reappointed him as a Managing 
Director & CEO for a further period of three 
years with effect from 1st August 2018.

 Mr. K. H. Viswanathan has been reappointed 
as an independent Director for the second 
term with effect from 1st August 2018 for a 
period of five years by the Board of Directors 
at their meeting held on 21st May 2018.

 Board has recommended the aforesaid re-
appointment of Mr. K. H. Viswanathan and 
Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala.

IX. Committees of the Board of Directors

 Information on the Audit committee, the 
Nomination and Remuneration committee, 
the Stakeholders Relationship committee, the 
Corporate Social Responsibility committee 
and meetings of those committees held 
during the year is given in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of this 
Report.

X. Deposits

 The Company has not accepted any deposit 
within the meaning of the Chapter V to 
Companies Act, 2013. Further, no amount 

on account of principal or interest on deposit 
was outstanding at the end of the year under 
report.

XI. Auditors

 Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants 
LLP the statutory auditors holds office of 
auditors for a period of five years from 28th 
September 2017, the conclusion of 34th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion 
of 39th Annual General Meeting.

XII. Cost Auditor and Cost Records

 As per Section 148 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Act read with 
Companies (Audit and Audiotrs) Rules, 
2014, the Board of Directors of your 
Company has reappointed M/s. Kiran J. 
Mehta & Co., Cost Accountants as the Cost 
Auditors of your Company for FY 2018-19  
at remuneration of R 1.10 lakhs per annum  
on the recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee.

 Members are requested to ratify their 
remuneration by passing an ordinary 
resolution in the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.

 XIII. Corporate Governance

 A separate report on Corporate Governance 
is annexed hereto as a part of this Report. 
Management Discussion and Analysis 
Statement is separately given in the Annual 
Report. A certificate from the auditors of 
the Company regarding compliance of 
conditions of Corporate Governance as 
prescribed under SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 is attached to this report.

XIV. Auditors’ Report

 There is no qualified opinion in the Auditors’ 
Report.

 We refer to para i (c) of Annexure B of 
Independent Auditor’s Report and state that 
the Company is in the process of executing 
document to transfer freehold land in respect 
of two plots of R 20.04 Lakhs (net block) in the 
name of the Company. The Company is in 
possession of land without any interference 
for more than 12 years. Further in respect of 
documents of title deeds of six residential 
flats of R 10.18 lakhs (net block), we clarify 
that the said flats are in the name of the 
Company and the Company is in the process 
of tracing the physical agreements of the 

lizaline.maharana
Highlight
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said flats.

XV. Secretarial Audit Report 

 A Secretarial Audit Report given by Mr. A. L. 
Makhija, the Company Secretary in practice 
is herewith annexed as Annexure C.

XVI. Risk Management Policy

 The Company has evolved risk management 
policy identifying primary risk and secondary 
risk. Primary risk includes manpower 
development, product efficiency, pace of 
development of new products, competition. 
Board has not identified any risk which 
threatens the existence of the Company.

XVII.Familiarization Program for Independent 
Directors (Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR), 
2015)

 The details of familiarization program (for 
independent Directors) is disclosed on 
the Company's website and a web link 
thereto is http://www.aymsyntex.com/
uploads/slider/familiarisation-policy_asl-
0696954001465570802.pdf

XVIII. Code of Conduct

 The Company has Code of Conduct for 
Board members and Senior Management 
personnel. A copy of the Code of conduct 
has been put on the Company’s website 
for information of all the members of the 
Board and management personnel and a 
weblink thereto is http://www.aymsyntex.
com/ uploads/slider/code-of-conduct_asl-
0346189001465455595.pdf. 

 All Board members and senior management 
personnel have affirmed compliance of the 
same.

XIX. Particulars af Employees

 Details of every employee of the Company 
as required pursuant to Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed as Annexure D.  

XX. Prevention of Sexual Harassment at 
Workplace

 The Company has complied with the 
provisions relating to constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee under the provisions 
of The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has 

adopted a policy on prevention of sexual 
harassment at workplace.

 The Company is committed towards 
promoting the work environment that 
ensures every employee is treated with 
dignity and respect and afforded equitable 
treatment irrespective of their gender, race, 
social class, caste, creed, religion, place 
of origin, sexual orientation, disability or 
economic status.

 During the year, the Company has received 
one complaint and appropriate action has 
been taken by the Company in this regard.

XXI. Acknowledgement

 Your Directors take this opportunity to 
express gratitude for valuable assistance and 
co-operation extended to the Company by 
Financial Institutions, Commercial Banks and 
other authorities. Your Directors also wish to 
place on record sincere appreciation of the 
dedicated services, hard work, solidarity and 
profuse support of all the employees of the 
Company.

For And On Behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajesh R Mandawewala 
Chairman 

DIN: 00007179

Place : Mumbai
Date : 13th August 2018
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DISCLOSURE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy: 

 To spend 2% average net profits of the 
Company made during the three immediately 
preceding financial years calculated in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 
198 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the sectors 
as mentioned in Schedule VII of the Act.

 To give preference to local area and areas 
around where it operates for spending the 
amount earmarked for Corporate Social 
Responsibility activities.

 List of activities to be undertaken by the 
Company as specified in Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013 as mentioned in the 
policy is placed on website of the Company 
at www.aymsyntex.com

ANNEXURE – A

2. The composition of the CSR Committee:

 i. Mr. Atul Desai  - Chairman

 ii. Mr. Rajesh R. Mandawewala -  Member

 iii. Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala - Member

3. Average net profit of the Company for 2014-
15, 2015-16 and 2016-17: R 5130.41 Lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent 
of the amount as in item 2 above): R 102.61 
Lakhs

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial 
year:

 a. Total amount to be spent for the 
financial year: R 102.61 Lakhs

 b. Amount unspent: R 9.05 Lakhs

 c. Manner in which the amount spent 
during the financial year is detailed 
below:

Sr. 
No.

CSR Project / Activity Identified Sector in which 
the project is 

identified as per 
Schedule VII of 
the CA, 2013

State and 
District where 

project was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
Project or 

programme 
wise

(R in lakhs)

Amount spent on the 
project or programme 

(sub head)

 i. Direct Expenditure 
on project or 
programme 
2.Overheads

(R in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to

31.03.2018

(R in lakhs)

Amount spent 
Direct or through 

implementing 
agency

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

1 Implementing an early childhood education 
program and promoting education

(Running a Balwadi for providing quality 
education to students between 3-6 years of 
age coming from economically challenged 
section of the society. The program also has 
provision of admission of the students to 
Grade I to ensure continuation of education. 
Inclusive of need based educational 
and development program for needy 
communities)

(ii)

Promoting 
Education

Palghar, 
Maharastra

8.14 8.14

93.56

Direct 
Implementation

2 Provision of safe drinking water

(Installation of need based water purification 
plants in Silvassa and Palghar to ensure 
accessibility of purified drinking water even 
in hard to reach areas and maintenance of 
the same)

(i) Promoting 
healthcare 

Making 
available safe 
drinking water

Silvassa, U T 
of Dadara and 
Nagar Haveli  
& Palghar, 

Maharashtra

73.31 64.26 Direct 
Implementation

3 Community development program

(Installation of solar based street light in 
poorly lit areas of Palghar and Silvassa)

(iv) Ensuring 
Environmental 
Sustainability

Silvassa, U T 
of Dadara and 
Nagar Haveli  
& Palghar, 

Maharashtra

2.03 2.03 Direct 
Implementation
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6. In case the Company has failed to spend the 
two percent of the average net profit of the 
last three financial years or any part thereof, 
the Company shall provide the reasons for 
not spending the amount in its Board report: 

 The Company’s plan for installation of further 
water purification plants at Palghar and 
Silvassa at an estimated cost of R 9.05 Lakhs 
remained pending and the same is expected 
to be incurred during the financial year 2018-
19. 

7. It is hereby confirmed by and on behalf of the 
CSR Committee that the implementation and 
monitoring of CSR policy is in compliance 

Sr. 
No.

CSR Project / Activity Identified Sector in which 
the project is 

identified as per 
Schedule VII of 
the CA, 2013

State and 
District where 

project was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
Project or 

programme 
wise

(R in lakhs)

Amount spent on the 
project or programme 

(sub head)

 i. Direct Expenditure 
on project or 
programme 
2.Overheads

(R in lakhs)

Cumulative 
expenditure 

up to

31.03.2018

(R in lakhs)

Amount spent 
Direct or through 

implementing 
agency

4 Providing Quality Education 

(Providing Educational facilities to the 
underprivileged students)

(ii) Promoting 
Education

Jamnagar, 
Gujarat

7.00 7.00 Through agency 
(Hind Samaj)

5 CSR monitoring and administrative 
expenditure including salaries

As allowed in 
the Section 
135 of the 

Companies Act

Mumbai, 
Maharashtra

5.13 5.13 As per 
requirement

6 Donating 7% of the CSR Budget to the 
Swatch Bharat Kosh

(i) Promoting 
Sanitation

Mumbai, 
Maharashtra

7.00 7.00 Through Swatch 
Bharat Kosh

Total   102.61 93.56 93.56

with the CSR objectives and policy of the 
Company.

Sd/-  Sd/-
Abhishek R. Mandawewala,  Atul Desai,
Managing Director & CEO  Chairman of CSR Committee

Sd/-
R. R. Mandawewala,
Chairman

Place : Mumbai
Date : 13th August 2018
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Act including certain arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature  Mandawewala Enterprises Limited (MEL),  
 of relationship     holding company    

b. Nature of contracts/ arrangements/   Providing services, office, sharing utility 
 transactions         

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/ (till termination) Either Party may terminate this 
 transactions     Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written  
       notice to the other party    

d. Salient terms of the contracts or   for providing accounting support services, 
 arrangements or transactions including  secretarial and legal support service  
 the value, if any    & other incidental services to MEL  
    

e. Date(s) of approval by the Board  11.08.2017    

f. Amount paid as advances, if any:  Nil

Note: The above transaction is a transaction with MEL, the holding company which is treated as related 
party transactions as per the definition provided under section 2 (76) of the Companies Act 2013. 

       For and on behalf of the Board of Directors    

       R R Mandawewala    

Place : Mumbai     Chairman    

Date : 13th August 2018                               DIN:00007179  

 

ANNEXURE – B
Form No AOC-2
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 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31-03-2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

AYM Syntex Ltd,

Mumbai.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the 
Compliance of Applicable Statutory Provisions 
and the adherence to Good Corporate Practices 
by AYM Syntex Ltd (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in 
a manner that provided me a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the Corporate conducts/Statutory 
Compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of AYM Syntex Ltd’s 
Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns 
filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its Officers, Agents and Authorized 
Representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 
Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has, during the Audit period covering 
the Financial year ended on 31st March 2018 
complied with the Statutory Provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and Compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the Books, Papers, Minute 
Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 
maintained by AYM Syntex Ltd, (“the Company”) 
for the Financial year ended on 31st March 2018 
according to the Provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), 
amendments and the Rules made 
thereunder; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) 
Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made 
thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the 

Regulations and Bye-laws framed 
thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 
1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines 
prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):- 

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 1992 and 2009; 

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Employee Stock Option Scheme 
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999;

 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014;

 f. The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

 g. The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client;

 h. The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and 

ANNEXURE – C
Form No MR - 3
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 i. The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998; 

 j. Other laws applicable specifically to 
the Company are as per Annexure A 
attached.

I have also examined compliance with the 
applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India; 

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the 
Company with BSE Limited and National 
Stock Exchange; 

iii. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

iv. The Companies Act, 2013 read with 
amendments and rules thereunder;

v. Securities Contract Regulations Act, 1956;

During the period under review the Company 
has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. mentioned above subject to the following 
observations:

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Woman 
Director and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to 
schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed 
notes on Agenda were sent at least Seven days 
in Advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the Agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, while the 
views of Members/Directors are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems 
and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the 
company has not undertaken any:

i. Public/Right/ debentures/sweat equity, etc. 
during the year under review; However, 
there has been preferential issue of:

 a. 63,50,000 Equity shares of R 10 each at 
premium of R 65 per share; and 

 b.  43,16,666 share warrants of R 75 per 
warrant

  aggregating to R 80,00,00,000 (Rupees 
Eighty Crores) during the year under 
review wherein the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2009 and other applicable 
Acts have been complied by the 
Company.

ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities during 
the year under review;

iii. Major decisions taken by the Company as 
per powers given to them by Members in 
pursuance to section 180 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are within the Limits laid down and 
are complied as per Rules and Regulations 
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013;

iv. No Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, 
etc have been undertaken during the year 
under review and

v. There has been No Foreign technical 
collaborations during the year under review.

 For A L Makhija & Co.,
 Company Secretaries
 
                                                

A.L.MAKHIJA
Proprietor

C P   : 3410
ACS : 5087

Place : Mumbai
Date :  21st May 2018
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ANNEXURE A:

The other laws applicable specifically to the 
Company are as follows:

i. The Water (Prevention & Control of 
Pollution) Act, 1974;

ii. The Water (Prevention & Control of 
Pollution) Rules, 1975;

iii. The Water (Prevention & Control of 
Pollution) Cess Act, 1977;

iv. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) 
Act, 1981;

v. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) 
Rules 1982/1983;

vi. The Hazardous Wastes (Management & 
Handling) Rules 1989;

vii. Indian Explosive Act, 1884;

viii. Indian Explosive Rules, 1983;

ix. Environment Statement Under Gujarat 
Pollution Control Rules;

x. Environmental Protection Act, 1986;

xi. The Forest (Conservation) Act, 1980;

xii. The Environment Impact Assessment 
Notification;

xiii. The Hazardous Waste (Management & 
Handling) Rules, 1989, Amended 2003;

xiv. Ozone Depleting Substances (Regulation 
& Control) Rules, 2000, Amended 2003;

xv. The Energy Conservation Act, 2001;

xvi. E Waste Management And Handling 
Rules 2011;

xvii. Dangerous Machines (Regulations) Act, 
1983;

xviii. Dangerous Machines (Regulations) Rules, 
1984;

xix. Boilers Act (Indian Boilers Act), 1923;

xx. Motor Vehicle Act, 1988;

xxi. Indian Electricity Rules, 1956;

xxii. Apprentices Act, 1961;

xxiiii. Child Labour (Prohibition & Regulation) 
Rules, 1986;

xxiv. Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) 
Act, 1970;

xxv. Employees Provident Funds & 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

xxvi. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

xxvii. Employment Exchange (Compulsory 
Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1976;

xxviii. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

xxix. Factories Act, 1948;

xxx. Bombay Industrial Relation Act, 1946;

xxxi. Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) 
Act, 1946;

xxxii. Inter State Migrant Workers (Regulation 
of Employment and Condition of Service) 

 Act, 1979

xxxiii.  Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;

xxxiv.  Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

xxxv.  Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

xxxvi.  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

xxxvii.  Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

xxxviii.  Trade Unions Act, 1926;

xxxix.  Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923;

xxxx.  Weekly Holidays Act, 1942;

xxxxi.  Trademarks Act, 1999;

xxxxii.  Patents Act, 1970

For A L Makhija & Co.,
 Company Secretaries
 
                                                

A.L.MAKHIJA
Proprietor

C P   : 3410
ACS : 5087

Place : Mumbai
Date :  21st May 2018
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A. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

 AYM Syntex Limited believes that for a Company to succeed on a sustained basis, it must maintain 
global standards of corporate conduct towards its employees, shareholders, consumers and 
society.

 The primary objective is to create and adhere to a corporate culture of consciousness, transparency 
and openness.

B. Board of Directors

 i. Composition

  Present strength of the Board of Directors is 6. Details of composition of the existing Board of 
Directors as on 31 March 2018 is given below:

Sr 
No.

Name of the Director Category No. of 
Directorship

in other 
Companies*

No. of shares 
and convertible 

instruments held 
by  Non-Executive 

Director

Member / 
Chairman in No. 
of Committees in 

Companies#

No. of Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

(01/04/17 to 
31/03/18)

Attendance
at last
AGM

Public Private

1 Mr. Rajesh R. Mandawewala P,NE,C 07^ 03 Nil (3)M 4 No

2 Mr. Abhishek R. Mandawewala P, E 01 07 Nil (1) C/(1)M 2 No

3 Mr. Atul Desai I, S, NE 07^ 00 30 Equity shares (5)C/(3)M 6 Yes

4 Mr. M. K. Tandon I, NE 01 Nil Nil (1)C / (2)M 6 No

5 Mr. B. A. Kale @
(Upto 6 May 2017)

E NA NA Nil Nil 1 N.A

6 Mr. K. H. Viswanathan I, NE 05^ 01 Nil (3)C/(5)M 6 Yes

7 Ms. Mala Todarwal I,W,NE 05^ 02 Nil (4)C/(4)M 5 No

@Mr. B A Kale ceased to be a Director with effect from 06 May 2017.
*excludes Directorship in foreign companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
^ Includes unlisted public companies.
# For the purpose of counting membership in Board Committee of other Companies, Chairmanship/ Membership of the Audit 
Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee alone are considered.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
For The Year Ended March 31, 2018

Annexure To The Director’s Report

Abbreviations:
P = Promoter, E = Executive Director, NE = Non 
- Executive Director, I = Independent Director, 
W= Woman Director, S = Shareholders, C = 
Chairman, M = Member.

ii. Disclosure of relationship between Directors 
interse:

 Mr. Abhishek R.  Mandawewala is son of Mr. 
Rajesh R. Mandawewala. 

iii. The details of familiarization program (for 
Independent Directors) are disclosed on 
the Company's website and a web link 
thereto is http://www.aymsyntex.com/
uploads/slider/familiarisation-policy_asl-
0696954001465570802.pdf

iv. Details of Date of Board Meetings: 

 Six meetings of the Board of Directors were 
held during the financial year 2017-18 i.e. 6th 
May 2017, 11th August 2017, 14th November 
2017, 25th January 2018, 1st February 2018 
and 28th February 2018. 

C. Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee consists of the following 
4 Independent Non-Executive Directors 
(financially literate) as on 31 March 2018.

 a. Mr. Atul Desai   - Chairman
 b. Mr. K. H. Viswanathan  - Member
 c. Mr. M.K. Tandon  - Member
 d. Ms. Mala Todarwal - Member 
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Mr. Kaushik N Kapasi, Secretary of the Company 
also acts as a Secretary to the Committee. 

Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference stipulated by the Board of 
Directors to the Audit Committee are as contained 
under Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 and section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Eight meetings of Audit Committee of Board 
of Directors were held on 15th April 2017, 6th 
May 2017, 4th August 2017, 11th August 2017, 
3rd November 2017, 14th November 2017, 6th 
January 2018 and 25th January 2018. The details 
of attendance of members of Audit Committee 
are as follows:

Sr 
No.

Name of the member Designation Number of 
meetings attended

(01/04/2017 to 
31/03/2018)

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 8

2 Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member 8

3 Mr. M.K.Tandon Member 8

4 Ms. Mala Todarwal Member 6

D. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

a. The terms of reference stipulated by the 
Board of Directors to the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee are as contained 
under regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

b. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
of the Board of Directors of the Company 
consists of the following members:

 i. Mr. Atul Desai  Chairman

 ii. Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member

 iii. Mr. M. K. Tandon  Member

 iv. Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member

 v. Ms. Mala Todarwal   Member

c. Four meetings of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committees were held on 6th 
May 2017, 11th August 2017, 14th November 
2017 and 1st February 2018. The details of 
attendance of members of the committee 
are as follows:

Sr 
No.

Name of the Member Designation Number of meetings 
attended

(01/04/2017 to 
31/03/2018)

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 4

2 Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member 2

3 Mr. K. H. Viswanathan Member 4

4 Mr. M. K. Tandon Member 4

5 Ms. Mala Todarwal Member 3

d. Performance Evaluation Criteria

 i. The evaluation of individual Directors 
would have two parts, viz. (a) quantitative 
data in the form of number of meetings 
of the board and committees attended 
as against the total number of such 
meetings held and (b) qualitative data 
coming out of the process of filling in 
a questionnaire by the Directors, which 
would be subjective, by its very nature.

 ii. In order to induce the respondents to 
give their frank views, the instruments 
would be so designed that only ticks 
would be required, with no provision 
for description and the Directors would 
not be required to identify themselves 
below the filled in questionnaire. 

 iii. The result of the evaluation would be 
discussed threadbare by the Board and 
remedial actions taken.

 iv. In case of individual Directors’ 
performance falling below a threshold, 
there would be a provision for individual 
counselling by the Chairman of the 
Company.

E. Remuneration to Directors 

 a. There are no pecuniary relationships 
or transactions with the Non-Executive 
Directors vis-a-vis the Company. 

 b. Criteria of making payments to Non-
Executive Directors:

  The Company pays sitting fees to 
Non-Executive Directors for attending 
meetings of the Board of Directors, 
Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Finance 



36

36

Committee, Stakeholder Relationship 
Committee, Independent Directors 
meeting, Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee, fee for attending General 
Meetings etc. 

		  Details of the payments made to Non-
Executive Directors during the year 
under Review is as under:

(R in Lakhs)

Name of Directors Sitting Fees

Mr. Atul Desai 6.25

Mr. K.H. Viswanathan 4.83

Mr. M.K. Tandon 4.65

Ms. Mala Todarwal 3.82

	 c.	 To recommend payment of 
Remuneration to Executive Director / 
Managing Director and CEO:

		  The details of Remuneration paid/
payable during the year under review 
are mentioned below:

(R in Lakhs)

Mr. B.A. Kale
(Executive Director 
upto 6th May 2017)

Mr. Abhishek R.  
Mandawewala

(Managing Director & CEO)

Salaries, 
allowances & 
Perqistes

9.54 69.41

Gratuity 14.42 1.44

Leave 
encashment

7.50 0

Contribution to 
Provident Fund

0.36 3.60

Commission*   106.75   42.70

TOTAL 138.57 117.70

Service contracts Resigned with effect 
from 6th May 2017

From  1 August 2015 to 
 31st July 2018

Notice period 3 months 3 months

Severance fees Nil Nil

Stock option Nil Nil

*Represents Commission for the year ended March 31, 2017 paid during the 
year under review. Commission for the year ended March 31, 2018 is NIL.

d.	 Meeting of Independent Directors

		  The Independent Directors of the 
Company shall hold at least one meeting 
in a year without the attendance of non-
independent Directors and members 
of management. The meeting of 

Independent Directors was held on 26 
March 2018 and the following points 
were discussed:

		  i.	 Reviewed the performance of non-
independent Directors, individual 
Directors, committees of Board 
and the Board as a whole;

		  ii.	 Reviewed the performance of 
the Chairperson of the Company, 
taking into account the views of 
Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors;

		  iii.	 Assessed the quality, quantity and 
timeliness of flow of information 
between the Company, 
management and the Board that 
is necessary for the Board to 
effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties.

F.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

a.	 Name of Non-Executive Director heading the 
Committee:

	 -	 Mr. Atul Desai 

b.	 Name and designation of Compliance 
Officer:

	 -	 Mr. Kaushik N. Kapasi –  
Company Secretary

c.	 Number of shareholders complaints received 
during the year: 

	 During the year one complaint was received 
in respect of Non receipt of Rejected 
Dematerailised Form. 

d.	 The said complaint was resolved within 
the stipulated time to the satisfaction of the 
investors/shareholders and no complaints 
were pending as on March 31st, 2018.

	 Details of Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee Meeting:

	 Four meetings were held during the year i.e. 
10th April 2017, 7th July 2017, 9th October 
2017 and 8th January 2018.
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Sr 
No.

Name of the Member Designation Number of meetings 
attended

(01/04/2017 to 
31/03/2018)

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 4

2 Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member 2

3 Mr. Abhishek R. 
Mandawewala

Member 3

G. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
(CSR)

 In compliance with the provisions of 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Company constituted a CSR Committee 
comprising of three Directors.

 a. Composition:

  The Committee comprises of:

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman

2 Mr. R R Mandawewala Member

3 Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala   Member

 The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary 
to the Committee.

 b. Terms of reference of the Committee, 
inter alia include the following:

  To formulate and recommend to the 
Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Policy indicating activities to 
be undertaken by the Company in 
compliance with the provisions of the 
Act and rules made thereunder.

  Our social vision has been enshrined 
in the Four S’s which have become the 
Guiding Principles of our CSR initiatives 
- Swasthya, Swabhiman, Sudhar and 
Srishti.

 c). Meetings and Attendance:

  During the year under review, the 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee met twice i.e. on 6th May 
2017 and 11th August 2017.

Sr No. Name of the Member Designation Number of meetings 
attended

(01/04/2017 to 
31/03/2018)

1 Mr. Atul Desai Chairman 2

2 Mr. R. R. Mandawewala Member 1

3 Mr. Abhishek R. 
Mandawewala 

Member 1

H. General Body Meeting

 a. Details of the last three Annual General 
Meetings held are as under:

Financial 
Year

Date Time Location

2014-15 23/09/2015 11.00a.m. Survey No. 394(P), Village Saily, 
Silvassa
(U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli)

2015-16 23/09/2016 11:00a.m. Survey No. 394(P), Village Saily, 
Silvassa 
(U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli)

2016-17 28/09/2017 11.00a. m Survey No. 394(P), Village Saily, 
Silvassa 
(U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli)

 b. Special Resolutions passed in the last 
three Annual General Meetings are as 
under:

Financial 
Year

Date Items

2014-15 23/09/2015 1. Appointment of Mr. Abhishek 
R. Mandawewala as a Whole Time 
Director of the Company for a period 
of three years w.e.f. 01.08.2015 on 
a remuneration of R 75.00 Lakhs 
p.a. inclusive of all perquisites and 
allowances plus commission @1% p.a. 
of net profits.

2015-16 23/09/2016 1.Re-appointment of Ms. Mala Todarwal 
as an Independent Women Director of 
the Company for a period of three years 
w.e.f. 01.08.2016. 

2 Re- Appointment of Mr. Bhalchandra 
Anant Kale as an Executive Director of 
the Company for a period of three years 
w.e.f. 30.10.2016.

2016-17 28/09/2017 None

I. Means of Communication 

 a. The quarterly Un-audited Financial 
Results and Yearly Audited Financial 
Results of the Company are sent to 
the BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange immediately after they are 
approved by the Board of Directors in 
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their Board meetings.

 b. The quarterly Un-audited Financial 
Results and Yearly Audited Financial 
Results of the Company have been 
advertised in Newspapers, details of 
which are as mentioned herein below:

Quarter/year 
end

Date of 
publication

Name of newspaper

31.03.2017 07.05.2017 The Financial Express (E)+ (G), 
Ahmedabad edition

30.06.2017 12.08.2017 The Financial Express (E)+ (G), 
Ahmedabad edition

30.09.2017 15.11.2017 The Financial Express (E)+ (G), 
Ahmedabad edition

31.12.2017 26.01.2018 The Financial Express (E)+ (G), 
Ahmedabad edition

 c. Website:http://www.aymsyntex.com/
quarterly-results  and http://www.
aymsyntex.com/investor-relations 

 d. Whether it also displays official news 
releases: No official news has been 
released during the year.

 e. Presentation made to institutional 
investors or to the analysts: None

J. General Shareholders Information

a 35th Annual General 
Meeting Venue

Plot no. 1, Survey No. 394(P), Village 
saily, Silvassa - 396230, U. T. of Dadra 
& Nagar Haveli.

Time 11.30 a.m

Day and Date Tuesday, 25th September 2018

b Financial year From 01st April 2017 to 31st March 2018

c Dividend payment 
date

No Dividend recommended/declared 

during the year

d Listing on Stock 
Exchanges and 
Stock Codes

i.National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE), Plot no. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra Kurla 
Complex Rd, Bandra East, Mumbai 
400051. 

ii.Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
(BSE), P. J. Tower, Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai 400001.

iii.Listing fees has been paid to BSE and 
NSE on 02.05.2018 

e Stock Code Stock code No. is 508933 (BSE) and 
Symbol is AYMSYNTEX (NSE).

 f. Market Price Data- High-Low Quotations 

on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
(BSE) and National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited (NSE), Mumbai during 
each month for the year 01 April 2017 
to 31 March 2018:

Month Bombay Stock 
Exchange (R )

Sensex National Stock 
Exchange (R )

Nifty

High Low High Low High Low High Low

Apr-17 87.15 78.8 30,184.22 29,241.48 87.85 78.80 9,367.15 9,075.15

May-17 87.00 77.00 31,255.28 29,804.12 86.90 77.00 9,649.60 9,269.90

Jun-17 84.00 75.00 31,522.87 30,680.66 84.00 75.00 9,709.30 9,448.75

Jul-17 79.00 62.00 32,672.66 31,017.11 79.20 71.25 10,114.85 9,543.55

Aug-17 84.00 52.55 32,686.48 31,128.02 73.90 51.70 10,137.85 9,685.55

Sep-17 64.50 53.00 32,524.11 31,081.83 64.55 58.00 10,178.95 9,687.55

Oct-17 69.10 58.60 33,340.17 31,440.48 69.90 61.00 10,384.50 9,831.05

Nov-17 72.70 59.50 33,865.95 32,683.59 72.50 59.20 10,490.45 10,094.00

Dec-17 68.50 55.50 34,137.97 32,565.16 68.45 52.20 10,552.40 10,033.35

Jan-18 78.65 62.00 36,443.98 33,703.37 78.90 62.00 11,171.55 10,404.65

Feb-18 74.45 60.50 36,256.83 33,482.81 74.35 60.10 11,117.35 10,276.30

Mar-18 69.90 56.00 34,278.63 32,483.84 70.05 57.00 10,525.50 9,951.90

 g. Performance in comparison to broad-
based indices i.e. BSE - Sensex and 
NSE - Nifty is as under:

Month BSE Index 
(Sensex)

AYM Syntex 
Stock month 
end Closing 

price (R )

NSE 
(Nifty)

AYM Syntex 
Stock month 
end Closing 

price (R )

Apr-17 29,918.40 86.15 9,304.05 85.85

May-17 31,145.80 82.20 9,621.25 82.75

Jun-17 30,921.61 75.00 9,520.90 75.50

Jul-17 32,514.94 71.85 10,077.10 71.55

Aug-17 31,730.49 59.90 9,917.90 59.85

Sep-17 31,283.72 62.65 9,788.60 62.55

Oct-17 33,213.13 64.00 10,335.30 64.35

Nov-17 33,149.35 61.05 10,226.55 60.55

Dec-17 34,056.83 66.40 10,530.70 65.90

Jan-18 35,965.02 62.50 11,027.70 62.90

Feb-18 34,184.04 66.35 10,492.85 66.55

Mar-18 32,968.68 60.75 10,113.70 60.70
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h.  Securities are not suspended from trading. 

i. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:

 Link Intime India Private Limited 
 Address : C-101,247 Park, LBS Marg, 

  Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083
 Tel. No. : 022 - 49186270
 Fax No. : 022 – 49186060,
 E-mail : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
 Website : www.linkintime.co.in

j. Share Transfer System

 The Shares of the Company are fully 
dematerialized under the category of 
compulsory delivery in dematerialized mode 
by all categories of investors. Shares sent for 
transfer in physical form are registered by 
the Company's Registar and Share Transfer 
Agent within 15 days from the date of receipt 
of documents, if the same are found in order. 
Shares under objection are returned within 
three days.

k. Distribution of Shareholding

 The distribution of shareholding as on 31st 
March 2018 is as follows:

Shareholding of 
nominal value

Share holders Amount

R Number % of 
Total

R % of 
Total

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)

Upto - 5,000 6735 77.79 1,02,04,540 2.24

5,001 - 10,000 764 8.82 64,30,170 1.41

10,001 – 20,000 493 5.69 77,00,510 1.69

20,001 – 30,000 207 2.39 53,86,140 1.18

30,001 – 40,000 94 1.09 34,28,700 0.75

40,001 – 50,000 67 0.77 31,87,040 0.70

50,001 - 1,00,000 143 1.65 1,04,86,510 2.30

1,00,001 and 
above

156 1.80 40,90,72,070 89.73

TOTAL 8659 100.00 45,58,95,680 100.00

l. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity 

 The Shares of the Company are fully 
dematerialized under the category of 
compulsory delivery in dematerialized mode 
by all categories of investors.

 The dematerialized shares are directly 
transferred to the beneficiaries by the 
depositories.

 The Company has signed agreements with 
both the depositories i.e. National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited.  As on 31st March 
2018, 86.02 % of the shares of the Company 
are dematerialized. 

 Bifurcations of shares are mentioned below:

Category As on 31 
March 2018

% of 
shareholding

No. of Shares held by NSDL 3,32,37,214 72.91

No. of Shares held by CDSL 59,78,419 13.11

Physical* 63,73,935 13.98

Total 4,55,89,568 100.00

 *This includes 63,50,000 equity shares allotted on 8th 
March 2018 which was dematerialized after corporate 
action executed on 3rd May 2018.
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m. The Company has not issued any GDRs/ 
ADRs. 

 The Company has allotted 43,16,666 
warrants of R 75 per warrant to Mandawewala 
Enterprises Limited, the holding company 
convertible into 43,16,666 Equity shares of 
R 10 each at premium of R 65 per share at 
the option of the warrant holder within 18 
months from the date of allotment but not 
before 31st March 2018.  

n. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange 
risk and hedging activities: Refer to 
Management Discussion & Analysis’ Section 
of this Report. 

o. Location of plant

Rakholi Plant and 
Registered Office

: Plot no. 1, Survey No. 394(P), 
Village Saily,  Silvassa - 396230, 
 U. T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli  

Palghar Plant : Plot no. I, 40 to 45, 116 to 118, 
Dewan Industrial Estate, Mahim 
Village, Palghar (W) - 401404, Dist - 
Palghar, Maharashtra

Address for 
Correspondence

: 9th Floor, Trade world, “B” Wing, 
Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati 
Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 
– 400 013

Telephone No : 022 – 61637000/7001

Fax No : 022 – 24937725

E-mail id : investorrelations@aymgroup.com

Website : www.aymsyntex.com

Compliance Officer and 
Secretary

: Mr. Kaushik N. Kapasi

K. Other Disclosures 

 a. Related party transactions:

  During the year there is no materially 
significant related party transactions i.e. 
transactions of the company of material 
nature, with its promoters, the Directors 
or the management, their subsidiaries 
or relatives etc. that may have potential 
conflict with the interests of the company 
at large.  The Company’s policy on 
dealing with Related Party Transactions 
as required under Regulation 23 of  SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 is hosted on 
the Company’s website and a web link 
thereto is as under:

  http://www.aymsyntex.com/uploads/
sl ider/related-parties-transaction-
policy_asl-0334404001465570841.pdf

 b. No penalties, strictures were imposed 
on the Company by Stock Exchange or 
SEBI or any statutory authority, on any 
matter related to capital markets, during 
the last three years. 

 c. Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil 
Mechanism

  The Company has a Whistle Blower 
Policy and Vigil Mechanism for its 
Directors and employees and no 
personnel have been denied access to 
the Audit Committee. A copy of policy 
is displayed on the website of the 
Company at     http://www.aymsyntex.
com/uploads/slider/whistle-blower-
policy-asl-0837957001465455562.pdf

L. Details of Compliance of the mandatory 
and non-mandatory clauses of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015

 a. The Company has complied with 
mandatory requirements as mentioned 
under Regulations 17 to 27 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 and has 
adopted the following discretionary 
requirements on Corporate Governance 
as recommended hereunder:

  i. The Company has separate 
individuals occupying the position 
of Chairman and that of Managing 
Director and CEO;

  ii. The Internal Auditor reports 
directly to the Audit Committee.

 b. Web link where policy for determining 
material subsidiaries is disclosed

  i. The Company does not have 
subsidiary company.

lizaline.maharana
Highlight

lizaline.maharana
Highlight
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 c. Web link where policy on dealing with 
related party transactions:

  http://www.aymsyntex.com/uploads/
sl ider/related-parties-transaction-
policy_asl-0334404001465570841.pdf

M. Code of conduct

 The Company has established a Code of 
Conduct for its Board members and its 

Senior Management Personnel. The Code 
of Conduct for the Board members and 
Senior Management Personnel is available 
on the Company’s website at: http://www.
aymsyntex.com/uploads/slider/code-of-
conduct_asl-0346189001465455595.pdf

 All the Board members and Senior 
Management Personnel have complied with 
the Code of Conduct.

N. Disclosure of shares held in suspense account under Clause F of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Aggregate number of shareholders 
and the outstanding shares in 

the suspense account lying at the 
beginning of the year

Number of shareholders who 
approached issuer for transfer of 

shares from suspense account 
during the year

Number of shareholders to whom 
shares were transferred from 

suspense account during the year

Aggregate number of shareholders 
and the outstanding shares in the 
suspense account lying at the end 

of the year

No of Holders No of Shares No of Holders No of Shares No of Holders No of Shares No of Holders No of Shares

133 6766 0 0 0 0 133 6766

 The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen until the shares have been claimed by and 
transferred to the rightful owner.

On behalf of Board of Directors

Abhishek Mandawewala

            Managing Director and CEO

Place : Mumbai
Date :  21st May 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 

To 

The Members of AYM Syntex Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by AYM Syntex Limited, 
for the year ended March 31, 2018 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively referred to as 
“SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or 
Certificates for Special Purpose, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and was limited 
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, We 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 
the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

.

      For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

                                                             Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

                                                             

      Mehul Desai 
Place: Mumbai                                               Partner 
Date: 21st May 2018    Membership Number: 103211

Certificate
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of AYM Syntex Limited

Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial 
statements of AYM Syntex Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS 
Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is 
responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS 
financial statements to give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance 
(including other comprehensive income), cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified in the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 
of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair 

view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these Ind AS financial statements based on 
our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder 
including the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder.

5. We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act and other applicable authoritative 
pronouncements issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and pronouncements require 
that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the Ind 
AS financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and the disclosures in the Ind AS financial 
statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair 
view, in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

made by the Company’s Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind 
AS financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2018, and its total comprehensive income 
(comprising of profit and other comprehensive 
income), its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

9. The comparative financial information of 
the Company for the year ended March 
31, 2017 and the transition date opening 
balance sheet as at April 1, 2016 included in 
these Ind AS financial statements, are based 
on the previously issued statutory financial 
statements for the years ended March 31, 2017 
and March 31, 2016 prepared in accordance 
with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited 
by the predecessor auditor who expressed an 
unmodified opinion vide reports dated May 
6, 2017 and May 6, 2016 respectively. The 
adjustments to those financial statements 
for the differences in accounting principles 
adopted by the Company on transition to the 
Ind AS have been audited by us.  Our opinion 
is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), 

and on the basis of such checks of the books 
and records of the Company as we considered 
appropriate and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we give in 
the Annexure B a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

11. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we 
report that:

 a. We have sought and obtained all the 
information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 b. In our opinion, proper books of account 
as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

 c.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account.

 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS 
financial statements comply with the 
Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

 e. On the basis of the written representations 
received from the directors as on March 
31, 2018, taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act.

 f. With respect to the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference 
to financial   statements of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in 
Annexure A.

 g. With respect to the other matters to 
be included in the Auditors’ Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief and according 
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to the information and explanations given 
to us:

  i  The Company has disclosed the 
impact, if any, of pending litigations 
as at March 31, 2018 on its financial 
position in its Ind AS financial 
statements – Refer Note 39; 

  ii.  The Company has long-term contracts 
as at March 31, 2018 for which there 
were no material foreseeable losses.  
The Company did not have any long-
term derivative contracts as at March 
31, 2018.

  iii.  There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company during the 
year ended March 31, 2018. 

  iv.  The reporting on disclosures relating 
to Specified Bank Notes is not 
applicable to the Company for the 
year ended March 31, 2018.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai

 Partner 
 Membership Number: 103211

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 21, 2018



47

STRATEGIC REPORT  |  STATUTORY REPORT  |  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent 
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of AYM Syntex Limited on the Ind AS financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.  We have audited the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of AYM 
Syntex Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

2.  The Company’s management is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements based 
on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to 

Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls and both 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements 
was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

4.  Our audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and 
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements

6.  A company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company’s internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements includes 
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

Opinion

8.  In our opinion, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at March 31. 
2018, based on internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai

 Partner 
 Membership Number: 103211

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 21, 2018
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Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent 
Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of AYM Syntex Limited on the Ind AS financial 
statements as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2018

i. a. The Company is maintaining proper 
records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation, of fixed 
assets.

 b. The fixed assets of the Company 
have been physically verified by the 
Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed 
on such verification.  In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification is reasonable.

 c. The title deeds of immovable properties, 
as disclosed in Note 3 on fixed assets to 
the financial statements, are held in the 
name of the Company, except in respect 
of the following immovable properties:  

Nature of 
immovable

Number 
of cases

Value as at March 
31, 2018  

(R in Lakhs)

Remarks

Gross 
block

Net 
block

Freehold land 2 45.22 20.04 Title is not 
transferred in 
the name of the 
Company

Residential Flats 6 14.85 10.18 Documents of title 
deeds not available 
with the Company

ii.  The physical verification of inventory 
(excluding goods in transit and stocks 
with third parties) have been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the Management 
during the year. In respect of inventory lying 
with third parties, these have substantially 
been confirmed by them. The discrepancies 
noticed on physical verification of inventory 
by Management as compared to book 
records were not material. 

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Act”). Therefore, the provisions of Clause 
3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  The Company has not granted any loans 
or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered 
under Section 185 and 186.  Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are 
not applicable to the Company.  

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits 
from the public within the meaning of Sections 
73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules 
framed there under to the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government of India, the Company is 
required to maintain cost records as specified 
under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect 
of its products. We have broadly reviewed 
the same, and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and records 
have been made and maintained.  We have 
not, however, made a detailed examination of 
the records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete. 

vii.  a. According to the information and 
explanations given to us and the records 
of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
in respect of employees’ state insurance, 
income tax, service tax, cess, goods and 
service tax with effect from July 1, 2017, 
though there has been a slight delay in 
a few cases, and is regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including 
sales tax, provident fund, value added 
tax, profession tax, duty of customs, duty 
of excise and other material statutory 
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities.

 b.  According to the information and 
explanations given to us and the records 
of the Company examined by us, there 
are no dues of value added tax and goods 
and service tax which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute. The 
particulars of dues of income tax, sales 
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tax, service tax, duty of customs and duty 
of excise as at March 31, 2018, which 
have not been deposited on account of a 
dispute, are as follows:

Name of 
the statute

Nature of 
dues

Amount  
(R in 

Lakhs)*

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where the 
dispute is pending

The Income 
tax Act, 
1961

Income 
tax

10.68 Assessment 
Years 
2012-13 to 
2014-15

Commissioner 
of Income Tax 
(Appeals), Mumbai

Bombay 
Sales Tax 
Act, 1959

Sales tax 166.09 Financial 
Years  
2002-03 and 
2003-04

Joint Commissioner 
of Sales Tax 
(Appeals), Thane

The Finance 
Act, 1994

Service 
Tax

1.95 Financial 
Years  
2005-06 and 
2006-07

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Central Excise and 
Customs, Vapi

55.96 Financial 
Year  
2006-07

Commissioner of 
Central Excise, 
Customs and 
Service Tax, Vapi

103.86 Financial 
Years  
2007-08 to 
2012-13

Commissioner of 
Central Excise, Vapi

86.61 Financial 
Years  
2013-14 to 
2014-15

Commissioner of 
Central Excise and 
Customs, Vapi

221.71 Financial 
Year  
2014-15

Central Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal, 
Ahmedabad

56.44 Financial 
Year  
2015-16

Commissioner of 
Central Excise and 
Customs, Vapi

The 
Customs 
Act, 1962

Duty of 
Customs

72.55 Financial 
Years 
1996-97 and 
1997-98

Commissioner of 
Customs, Mumbai

168.36 Financial 
Year 2006-07

Commissioner of 
Customs (Imports), 
Navi Mumbai

3.78 Financial 
Years 
2006-07 to 
2008-09

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Central Excise and 
Customs, Vapi

25.00 Financial 
Year  
2013-14

Commissioner of 
Customs (Appeals), 
Mumbai

The Central 
Excise Act, 
1944

Duty of 
excise

30.37 Financial 
Year  
2006-07

Commissioner of 
Central Excise and 
Customs, Vapi

41.42 Financial 
Year  
2007-08

Joint Commissioner 
of Central Excise 
and Customs, Vapi

* Net of amount paid under protest

Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

viii. According to the records of the Company 
examined by us and the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has 
not defaulted in repayment of loans or 
borrowings to any financial institution or bank 
or Government. As the Company has not 
issued any debentures as at Balance Sheet 
date, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the 
Order, to that extent, are not applicable to the 
Company. 

ix. In our opinion, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, 
the money raised by way of term loans have 
been applied for the purposes for which they 
were obtained. As the Company has not 
raised any moneys by way of initial public 
offer and further public offer (including debt 
instruments), the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order, to that extent, are not applicable to 
the Company.

x. During the course of our examination of the 
books and records of the Company, carried 
out in accordance with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, 
we have neither come across any instance 
of material fraud by the Company or on 
the Company by its officers or employees, 
noticed or reported during the year, nor have 
we been informed of any such case by the 
Management.

xi. The Company has paid/ provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with 
the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Act. 

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and 
the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions 
with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. 
The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial 
statements as required under Ind AS 24, 
Related Party Disclosures specified under 
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Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 4 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended).

xiv. The Company has made a preferential 
allotment of shares during the year under 
review, in compliance with the requirements 
of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised 
have been used for the purpose for which 
funds were raised. 

xv. The Company has not entered into any non 
cash transactions with its directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered 
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934.  Accordingly, the provisions 
of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Mehul Desai

 Partner 
 Membership Number: 103211

Place : Mumbai 
Date  : May 21, 2018
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
As at  

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
As at  

April 1, 2016
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  34,686.23  32,830.23  28,191.39 
Capital work-in-progress 3  3,293.85  1,632.07  1,414.36 
Intangible assets 4  83.47  66.52  41.71 
Financial assets
- Investments 5  -    13.03  14.81 
- Other financial assets 6  7.01  26.49  15.29 
Deferred tax assets (net) 7  2,460.87  2,318.60  2,061.15 
Other non-current assets 8  2,232.52  1,222.36  1,178.85 
Total non-current assets  42,763.95  38,109.30  32,917.56 

Current assets
Inventories 9  8,991.65  7,700.00  5,669.52 
Financial assets
- Investments 10  701.09  1,694.06  -   
- Trade receivables 11  8,568.87  6,120.71  6,313.29 
- Cash and cash equivalents 12  770.60  913.86  3,836.12 
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 13  2,047.47  1,494.82  1,657.38 
- Loans 14  97.28  71.20  39.12 
- Other financial assets 15  195.87  121.09  162.33 
Other current assets 16  3,781.74  2,783.05  2,866.88 
Total current assets  25,154.57  20,898.79  20,544.64 
Total assets  67,918.52  59,008.09  53,462.20 

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 17(a)  4,558.96  3,923.96  3,923.96 
Other equity
- Reserves and Surplus 17(b)  24,432.05  19,510.37  15,509.91 
- Money received against share warrants 17(c)  809.37  -    -   
Total equity  29,800.38  23,434.33  19,433.87 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings  18  16,406.86  17,974.44  16,681.60 
Employee benefit obligations 19  672.19  593.90  452.14 
Total non-current liabilities  17,079.05  18,568.34  17,133.74 

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 20  5,005.56  2,074.85  1,876.84 
- Trade payables 21  10,354.78  9,169.43  10,001.20 
- Other financial liabilities 22  4,728.71  4,504.25  3,333.00 
Employee benefit obligations 23  361.87  565.06  715.69 
Current tax liabilities 24  -    -    365.03 
Other current liabilities 25  588.17  691.83  602.83 
Total current liabilities  21,039.09  17,005.42  16,894.59 
Total liabilities  38,118.14  35,573.76  34,028.33 
Total equity and liabilities  67,918.52  59,008.09  53,462.20 

Notes forming part of the financial statements      1-50
The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes. 
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of the even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N500016 
Mehul Desai Rajesh Mandawewala Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 103211 DIN 00007179 DIN 00737785   
 Himanshu Dhaddha Kaushik Kapasi 
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
Date : May 21, 2018  
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Income

Revenue from operations 26  85,057.91  81,694.64 

Other operating income 27  1,059.13  1,107.11 

Other income 28  558.95  378.47 

Total Income  86,675.99  83,180.22 

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 29  49,466.06  42,017.59 

Changes in inventories of finished goods and goods-in-process 30 (1,033.52) (1,310.57)

Excise duty on sale of goods  1,075.47  4,867.66 

Employee benefit expense 31  6,579.39  5,835.10 

Depreciation and amortization expense 32  3,297.38  3,027.25 

Other expenses 33  23,654.82  21,661.49 

Finance costs 34  2,792.76  2,272.52 

Total Expenses  85,832.36  78,371.04 

Profit Before Tax 843.63 4,809.18 

Income Tax Expense 35 

Current tax 182.70  984.49 

Deferred tax (139.12) (229.18)

Total Income Tax Expense 43.58  755.31 

Profit for the year 800.05 4,053.87 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan 32 (9.02) (81.68)

Income tax effect on above 35 3.15 28.27 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (5.87) (53.41)

Total comprehensive income for the year 794.18 4,000.46 

Earnings per share 41 

Basic (R) 2.02 10.33 

Diluted (R) 2.02 10.33 

Notes forming part of the financial statements                             1-50               
The above staement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes. 
This is the staement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of the even date.
   
For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N500016 
Mehul Desai Rajesh Mandawewala Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 103211 DIN 00007179 DIN 00737785 
   
Place: Mumbai Himanshu Dhaddha Kaushik Kapasi 
Date : May 21, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  

lizaline.maharana
Highlight
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Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax  843.63  4,809.18 

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense  3,297.38  3,027.25 

Finance costs  2,792.76  2,272.52 

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (Net) (71.89) (83.72)

Unrealised loss/(gain) on derivative transactions (Net) (24.56) (11.45)

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair valuethrough profit or loss (1.08) (7.66)

Dividend income on current investments classified as investing cash flows  -   (8.01)

Loss / (Gain) on sale of investments (Net) (53.18) (178.99)

Loss on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (Net)  26.60  78.11 

Interest income (190.19) (145.14)

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities  6,619.47  9,752.07 

Adjustments for changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) in inventories (1,291.64) (2,030.48)

(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (2,438.82) 172.35 

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  1,247.89 (727.82)

Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabilities (0.58) 1.39 

(Decrease) in employee benefit obligations (133.91) (90.57)

Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities (103.66) 89.00 

(Increase) / decrease in other current financial assets (72.23) 42.91 

(Increase) / decrease in other non-current financial assets 11.74 (10.71)

(Increase) / decrease in other non-current assets (83.41) (7.49)

(Increase) / decrease in other current assets (993.65) 86.34 

Cash generated from operations  2,761.20  7,276.99 

Income tax paid (263.73) (1,411.51)

Net cash generated from operating activities  2,497.47  5,865.48 

Cash flow from investing activities

Payment for property, plant, equipment and intangible assets (8,053.12) (7,511.00)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  1.01  15.71 

Realisation / (investment) in fixed deposit and margin money (Net) (571.57) 130.48 

Sale / (Purchase) of Investment (Net)  1,060.31 (1,505.68)

Interest received  188.21  142.98 

Dividend received  -    8.01 

Net cash used in investing activities (7,375.16) (8,719.50)

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31st March, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares and warrants (Net)  3,571.87  -   

Proceeds from borrowings (Net)  3,961.55  2,181.83 

Interest paid (2,798.99) (2,250.07)

Net cash generated / (used in) in financing activities  4,734.43 (68.24)

Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (143.26) (2,922.26)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  913.86  3,836.12 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  770.60  913.86 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on Hand  17.21  12.30 

Balance with banks in current accounts  753.39  901.56 

Cash and bank balances at the end of the year  770.60  913.86 

Notes:
1)  Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 " Statements of Cash Flow" 
2)  Previous year figures are regrouped/reconsidered wherever necessary.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of the even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration No: 012754N/ N500016 
 
Mehul Desai Rajesh Mandawewala Abhishek Mandawewala  
Partner Chairman CEO and Managing Director 
Membership No. 103211 DIN 00007179 DIN 00737785 
   
 Himanshu Dhaddha Kaushik Kapasi 
 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
Place: Mumbai  
Date : May 21, 2018 

Cash Flow Statement For the year ended 31st March, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

General Information

AYM Syntex Limited (herein referred to as “AYM” 
or “the Company”) is public limited Company 
incorporated and domiciled in India. The address 
of its registered office is Survey No. 394P, Village 
- Saily, Silvassa, Dadra & Nagar Haveli- 396230, 
India. The Company is listed on the Bombay Stock 
Exchange (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange 
(NSE). Since its inception, it has grown manifold 
and today is amongst the largest manufacturers 
and exporters of Polyester Texturised Filament 
Yarn, Nylon Filament Yarn and Bulk Continuous 
Filament Yarn from India. 

The financial statements were authorized for issue 
by the board of directors on May 21, 2018.

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies

This Note provides a list of the significant 
accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of these financial statements. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

 a. Compliance with IND-AS

  The financial statements comply in all 
material aspects with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act.

  The financial statements up to year 
ended March 31, 2017 were prepared 
in accordance with the accounting 
standards notified under Companies 
(Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as 
amended) and other relevant provisions 
of the Act (“Previous GAAP”). 

  These financial statements are the first 
financial statements of the Company 
under Ind AS. Refer Note 49 for an 
explanation of how the transition from 
previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the 
Company’s financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows.

  The date of transition to Ind AS is April 
1, 2016. Refer Note 49 for the first time 
adoption exemptions availed by the 
Company.

  Reconciliations and explanations for the 
effect of the transition from Previous 
GAAP to Ind AS on the Company’s 
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 
Loss and Cash Flow Statement are 
provided in Note 49.

 b. Historical Cost Convention

  The financial statements have been 
prepared on an accrual and going 
concern basis. The financial statements 
have been prepared on a historical cost 
basis, except for the following:

  -  Certain financial assets and liabilities 
that is measured at fair value as stated 
in subsequent policies;

  - Assets held for sale – measured at 
lower of cost or fair value less cost to 
sell.

1.2 Foreign Currency Translation

 a. Functional and Presentation Currency

  Items included in the financial statements 
of the Company are measured using 
the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company 
operates (‘the functional currency’). The 
financial statements are presented in 
Indian rupees (R), which is Company’s 
functional and presentation currency.

 b. Transactions and Balances

  Foreign currency transactions are 
translated into the functional currency 
using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange 
gains and losses resulting from the 
settlement of such transactions and 
from the translation of monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at year end exchange rates are 
generally recognized in profit or loss. 
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  Foreign exchange differences regarded 
as an adjustment to borrowing costs are 
presented in the statement of profit and 
loss on a net basis within other expenses 
or other income, as applicable.

  Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of initial 
transaction.

  Non-monetary items that are measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined. 
Translation differences on assets and 
liabilities carried at fair value are reported 
as part of the fair value gain or loss.

1.3 Revenue Recognition

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive 
of excise duty and net of returns, trade 
allowances, rebates, value added tax and 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

 The Company recognizes revenue from sale 
of goods when:

 a. The Company has transferred to the 
buyer the significant risk and reward of 
ownership of goods;

 b. The Company retains neither continuing 
managerial involvement to the degree 
usually associated with the ownership 
nor effective control over the goods sold;

 c. The amount of revenue can be reliably 
measured;

 d. It is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the transaction 
will flow to the Company and

 e. The cost incurred or to be incurred 
in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably.

 The Company bases its estimates on historical 
results, taking into consideration the type 
of customer, the type of transaction and the 

specifics of each arrangement. 

  Export sales are accounted for on the basis of 
date of bill of lading. Consignment sales are 
recognized on confirmation from consignee/ 
consignment agent.

  Revenue from services is recognized when 
the services are completed.

1.4 Other Income 

 Dividend income is recognized when right to 
receive the dividend is established. Interest 
income is recognized on a time proportion 
basis, taking into consideration the amount 
outstanding and the applicable interest rate 
except interest income from customers which 
is accounted on receipt basis.

1.5 Government Grants

 Grants from the government are recognised 
at their fair value where there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and 
the Company will comply with all attached 
conditions.

 Grants related to assets are government grants 
whose primary condition is that an entity 
qualifying for them should purchase, construct 
or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Grants 
related to income are government grants 
other than those related to assets.

 Government grants relating to income are 
deferred and recognised in the profit or loss 
over the period necessary to match them with 
the costs that they are intended to compensate 
and presented either under “other operating 
income” or are deducted in reporting the 
related expense. The presentation approach 
is applied consistently to all similar grants.

 Government grants relating to the purchase of 
property, plant and equipment are included in 
liabilities as deferred income and are credited 
to profit or loss over the periods and in 
proportions in which depreciation expense on 
those assets is recognized.

 Export Benefits: In case of sale made by the 
Company as support manufacturer, export 
benefits arising from Duty Drawback scheme 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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are recognised on export of such goods 
in accordance with the agreed terms and 
conditions with customers. In case of direct 
exports made by the Company, export benefits 
arising from DEPB, Duty Drawback scheme, 
Merchandise Export Incentive Scheme, Focus 
Market Scheme and Focus Product Scheme 
are recognised on shipment of direct exports.

1.6 Income Tax

 The income tax expense or credit for the year 
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable 
income based on the applicable income 
tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities attributable 
to temporary differences and to unused tax 
losses.

 Current and deferred income tax is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to 
the extent it relates to items recognized directly 
in equity or other comprehensive income, in 
which case it is recognized in equity or other 
comprehensive income respectively. 

 a. Current Income Tax

  Current income tax charge is based 
on taxable profit for the year. The tax 
rates and tax laws used to compute the 
amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date where the Company operates and 
generates taxable income. Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in 
tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject 
to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities.

  Current tax assets and liabilities are 
offset when there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and Company 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

 b. Deferred Income Tax 

  Deferred income tax is provided in full 
using the liability method on temporary 
differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes 
at the reporting date. Deferred income tax 
assets are recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable income will 
be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses, 
depreciation carry-forwards and unused 
tax credits could be utilized.

  Deferred income tax is not accounted for 
if it arises from initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction other than 
a business combination that at the time of 
the transaction affects neither accounting 
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

  Deferred income tax is determined using 
tax rates and laws that have been enacted 
or substantially enacted by the end of 
the reporting period and are expected to 
apply when the related deferred income 
tax asset is realized or the deferred 
income tax liability is settled.

  The carrying amount of deferred income 
tax assets is reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted to reflect changes in 
probability that sufficient taxable profits 
will be available to allow all or part of the 
asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences and 
unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available 
to utilise those temporary differences and 
losses.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off-
set when there is a legally enforceable 
right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation 
authority.  Current tax assets and tax 
liabilities are offset where the entity has 
a legally enforceable right to off-set and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability 
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simultaneously.

  Current and Deferred Tax is recognised 
in profit or loss, except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity. In this case the tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity respectively.

  Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit 
entitlement is recognized as a deferred 
income tax asset by crediting the 
Statement of Profit and Loss only when 
and to the extent there is convincing 
evidence that the Company will be able 
to avail the said credit against normal 
tax payable during the period of fifteen 
succeeding assessment years, if it is 
probable  that MAT credit will reverse 
in the foreseeable future and taxable 
profit will be available against which the 
deferred income tax asset  can be utilised. 

  Dividend distribution tax paid on the 
dividends is recognised consistently with 
the presentation of the transaction that 
creates the income tax consequence. 
Dividend distribution tax is charged 
to Statement of Profit and Loss if the 
dividend itself is charged to statement 
of profit and loss. If the dividend is 
recognised in equity, the presentation of 
dividend distribution tax is recognised in 
equity.

1.7 Leases

 Leases of property, plant and equipment where 
the Company, as lessee, has substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are 
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. 
The corresponding rental obligations, net of 
finance charges, are included in borrowings 
or other financial liabilities as appropriate. 
Each lease payment is allocated between the 
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is 
charged to the profit or loss over the lease 
period so as to produce a constant periodic 

rate of interest on the remaining balance of 
the liability for each period.

 Leases in which a significant portion of the 
risks and rewards of ownership are not 
transferred to the Company as lessee are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases (net of any incentives 
received from the lessor) are charged to 
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
period of the lease unless the payments are 
structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

1.8 Property, Plant And Equipment

 Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All 
other items of property, plant and equipment 
are stated at historical cost less depreciation. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
items. 

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s 
carrying amount or recognised as a separate 
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 
that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted 
for as a separate asset is derecognised when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to profit or loss during the 
reporting period in which they are incurred.

 Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of 
property, plant and equipment and related 
expenses that are not yet ready for their 
intended use at the reporting date.

 Transition to Ind AS

 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has 
elected to continue with the carrying value 
of all of its property, plant and equipment 
recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying 
value as the deemed cost of the property, 
plant and equipment.

 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives 
and residual value
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 Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold 
improvements are amortised over the shorter 
of estimated useful life or the related lease 
term. Depreciation is calculated using the 
straight-line method to allocate their cost, net 
of their residual values, over their estimated 
useful lives as follows:

Assets Useful life

Office Equipment        05 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computer 03 years

Vehicles 08 years

Plant and machinery* 15 to 25 years

Electrical installation 10 years

Factory Building 30 years

Residential and other Buildings      60 years

*Extra shift depreciation is provided.

 Assets individually costing R 5000 or less are 
depreciated fully in the year of acquisition.

 The useful lives have been determined based 
on Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The residual values are not more than 5% 
of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ 
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period.

 Depreciation of additions / deletions during 
the year is provided from the month in which 
the asset is capitalized up to the month in 
which the asset is disposed off.

 Estimated useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation methods are reviewed 
annually, taking into account commercial and 
technological obsolescence as well as normal 
wear and tear and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

 As asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount if the 
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its 
estimated recoverable amount.

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined 
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. 
These are included in profit or loss within other 

expenses or other income, as applicable.

1.9 Intangible Assets

 a. Intangible Assets with Finite Useful 
Lives

  Intangible assets with finite useful lives 
acquired by the Company are measured 
at cost less accumulated amortization 
and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortization is charged on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives. The 
estimated useful life and amortization 
method are reviewed at the end of each 
annual reporting period, with the effect 
of any changes in the estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

 b. Research and Development

  Research expenditure and development 
expenditure that do not meet the criteria 
in Note 1.9(a) above are recognised as an 
expense as incurred. Development costs 
previously recognised as an expense are 
not recognised as an asset in subsequent 
period.

 c. Amortisation Methods and Periods

  Intangible assets comprise of computer 
software which is amortized on a straight-
line basis over its expected useful life 
over a period of five years.

 d. Transition to Ind AS

  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has 
elected to continue with the carrying value 
of all of intangible assets recognised as at 
April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of intangible assets.

1.10  Impairment of Assets

 Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful 
life are not subject to amortization and are tested 
annually for impairment, or more frequently if 
events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that they might be impaired. Other assets are 
tested for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
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impairment loss is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the 
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are 
grouped at the lowest levels for which there 
are separately identifiable cash inflows which 
are largely independent of the cash inflows 
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial that suffered 
an impairment are reviewed for possible 
reversal of the impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.

1.11 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

 Non-current assets are classified as held for 
sale if their carrying amount   will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use and a sale 
is considered highly probable.  They are 
measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

 An impairment loss is recognised for any initial 
or subsequent write-down of the assets to fair 
value less costs to sell.  A gain is recognised 
for any subsequent increases in fair value less 
cost to sell of an assets, but not in excess of 
any cumulative impairment loss previously 
recognised.  A gain or loss not previously 
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current assets is recognised at the date of de-
recognition.

 Non-current assets are not depreciated or 
amortized while they are classified as held for 
sale.  Interest and other expenses attributable 
to the liabilities of a disposal group classified 
as held for sale continue to be recognised.

1.12  Inventories

 Raw materials and stores, work in progress, 
and finished goods

 Raw materials and stores, work in progress 
and finished goods are stated at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw 
materials comprises cost of purchases. Cost 
of work-in progress and finished goods 
comprises direct materials, direct labour and 

an appropriate proportion of variable and 
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being 
allocated on the basis of normal operating 
capacity. Cost of inventories also include all 
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition. Costs 
are assigned to individual items of inventory 
on moving average basis. Costs of purchased 
inventory are determined after deducting 
rebates and discounts. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary 
to make the sale.

1.13 Financial Instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that 
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 
and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity.

 Investments and Other Financial Assets

 a. Classification

  The Company classifies its financial assets 
in the following measurement categories:

  •	 Those to be measured subsequently 
at fair value (either through other 
comprehensive income, or through 
profit or loss), and 

  •	 Those measured at amortised cost.

  The classification depends on the entity’s 
business model for managing the financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the 
cash flows. 

  For assets measured at fair value, gains 
and losses will either be recorded in profit 
or loss or other comprehensive income. 

  For investments in debt instruments, 
recognition will depend on the business 
model in which the investment is held.

  For investments in equity instruments, 
recognition will depend on whether 
the Company has made an irrevocable 
election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at 
fair value through other comprehensive 
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income. 

  The Company reclassifies debt 
investments when and only when its 
business model for managing those 
assets changes.

 b. Measurement

  At initial recognition, the Company 
measures a financial asset at its fair value 
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at 
fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss 
are expensed in profit or loss. 

 i. Debt Instruments:

  Subsequent measurement of debt 
instruments depends on the Company’s 
business model for managing the asset 
and the cash flow characteristics of the 
asset. There are three measurement 
categories into which the Company 
classifies its debt instruments:

 •  Amortised Cost: 

  Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows where those 
cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest are measured 
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a 
debt investment that is subsequently 
measured at amortised cost and is 
not part of a hedging relationship is 
recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised or impaired. 
Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using 
the effective interest rate method.

 •  Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI): `

  Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling 
the financial assets, where the assets’ 
cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest, are measured at 
fair value through other comprehensive 

income (FVOCI). Movements in the 
carrying amount are taken through OCI, 
except for the recognition of impairment 
gains or losses, interest income and 
foreign exchange gains and losses which 
are recognised in profit and loss. When 
the financial asset is derecognised, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss and recognised 
in other expenses or other incomes, as 
applicable. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in other 
income using the effective interest rate 
method. Foreign Exchange gains and 
losses are presented in other gains and 
losses and impairment expenses in other 
expenses.

 •  Fair Value Through Profit or Loss: 

  Assets that do not meet the criteria for 
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. A 
gain or loss on a debt investment that 
is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit or loss and is not part of 
a hedging relationship is recognised in 
profit or loss and presented net in the 
statement of profit and loss within other 
expenses or other incomes, as applicable 
in the period in which it arises. Interest 
income from these financial assets is 
included in other income. 

 ii.  Equity Instruments:

  The Company subsequently measures 
all equity investments at fair value. 
Where the Company’s management has 
elected to present fair value gains and 
losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there will be 
no subsequent reclassification of fair 
value gains and losses to profit or loss. 
Dividends from such investments are 
recognised in profit or loss as other 
income when the Company’s right to 
receive payments is established.

  Changes in the fair value of financial 
assets at fair value through profit or 
loss are recognised in the statement of 
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profit and loss. Impairment losses (and 
reversal of impairment losses) on equity 
investments measured at FVOCI are not 
reported separately from other changes 
in fair value.

 c. Impairment of Financial Assets

  The Company assesses on a forward 
looking basis the expected credit 
losses associated with its assets 
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI 
debt instruments. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk. Note 38 details how 
the Company determines whether there 
has been a significant increase in credit 
risk.

  For trade receivables only, the Company 
applies the simplified approach permitted 
by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, 
which requires expected lifetime losses 
to be recognised from initial recognition 
of the receivables.

 d. Derecognition of Financial Assets 
Revenue Recognition

  A financial asset is derecognised only 
when 

  •	 The Company has transferred the 
rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset or 

  •	 Retains the contractual rights to 
receive the cash flows of the financial 
asset, but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay the cash flows to 
one or more recipients. 

  Where the entity has transferred an asset, 
the Company evaluates whether it has 
transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset. In such cases, the financial asset 
is derecognised. Where the entity 
has not transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is not 
derecognised. 

  Where the entity has neither transferred 
a financial asset nor retains substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset, the financial asset is 
derecognised if the Company has not 
retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the 
financial asset, the asset is continued to 
be recognised to the extent of continuing 
involvement in the financial asset.

 e. Income Recognition

  i. Interest Income

   Interest income from debt 
instruments is recognised using 
the effective interest rate method. 
The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset 
to the gross carrying amount of a 
financial asset. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company 
estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual 
terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayment, extension, 
call and similar options) but does not 
consider the expected credit losses.

  ii. Dividends

   Dividends are recognised in profit or 
loss only when the right to receive 
payment is established, it is probable 
that the economic benefits associated 
with the dividend will flow to the 
Company, and the amount of the 
dividend can be measured reliably.

 f. Cash and Cash Equivalents

  Cash and cash equivalents includes cash 
in hand, deposits held at call with banks, 
other short term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
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  For the purpose of statement of cash 
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 
outstanding bank overdraft, if any, shown 
within current liabilities in statement 
of financial position and which are 
considered as integral part of Company’s 
cash management policy.

 g. Trade Receivable

  Trade receivable are recognised initially 
at their fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method, less provision 
for impairment.

 Financial Liabilities

 a. Measurement

  Financial liabilities are initially recognised 
at fair value, reduced by transaction costs 
(in case of financial liability not at fair value 
through profit or loss), that are directly 
attributable to the issue of financial 
liability. After initial recognition, financial 
liabilities are measured at amortised 
cost using effective interest method. 
The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash outflow (including all fees paid, 
transaction cost, and other premiums 
or discounts) through the expected 
life of the financial liability, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. At 
the time of initial recognition, there is no 
financial liability irrevocably designated 
as measured at fair value through profit 
or loss. Liabilities from finance lease 
agreements are measured at the lower of 
fair value of the leased asset or present 
value of minimum lease payments.

 b. Derecognition

  A financial liability is derecognised 
when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is 
replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are 

substantially modified, such an exchange 
or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and 
the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss.

 c. Borrowings

  Borrowings are initially recognised at fair 
value, net of transaction costs incurred. 
Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost. Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) 
and the redemption amount is recognised 
in profit or loss over the period of the 
borrowings using the effective interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment 
of loan facilities are recognised as 
transaction costs of the loan to the extent 
that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down. In this case, 
the fee is deferred until the draw down 
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence 
that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down, the fee is 
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity 
services and amortised over the period of 
the facility to which it relates.

  Borrowings are removed from the balance 
sheet when the obligation specified in 
the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the 
carrying amount of a financial liability that 
has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, 
including any non-cash assets transferred 
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
Statement of profit and loss . 

  Where the terms of a financial liability are 
renegotiated and the entity issues equity 
instruments to a creditor to extinguish 
all or part of the liability (debt for equity 
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss, which is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount 
of the financial liability and the fair value 
of the equity instruments issued. 
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  Borrowings are classified as current 
liabilities unless the Company has 
unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting period. Where there is a 
breach of a material provision of a long-
term arrangement on or before the end of 
the reporting period with the effect that 
the liability becomes payable on demand 
on the reporting date, the entity does 
not classify the liability as current, if the 
lender agreed, after the reporting period 
and before the approval of the financial 
statements for issue, not to demand 
payment as consequence of the breach.

 d.  Trade and Other Payables

  These amounts represent liabilities for 
goods and services provided to the group 
prior to the end of financial year which 
are unpaid.  The amounts are unsecured 
and are usually paid within 30 days 
recognition.  Trade and other payables 
are presented as current liabilities unless 
payment is not due within 12 months 
after the reporting period.  They are 
recognised initially at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.

 Financial Guarantee Contracts

 a.  Derivatives and Hedging Activities

  In order to hedge its exposure to foreign 
exchange, interest rate, and commodity 
price risks, the Company enters into 
forward, option, swap contracts and 
other derivative financial instruments. The 
Company does not hold derivative financial 
instruments for speculative purposes.

  Derivatives are initially recognised at fair 
value on the date a derivative contract 
is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of 
each reporting period.

 b. Derivatives that are not Designated as 
Hedges

  The Company enters into derivative 
contracts to hedge risks which are not 

designated as hedges. Such contracts are 
accounted for at fair value through profit 
or loss.

 c. Embedded Derivatives

  Derivatives embedded in a host contract 
that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 
109 are not separated. Financial assets 
with embedded derivatives are considered 
in their entirety whendetermining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of 
principal and interest.

  Derivatives embedded in all other 
host contract are separated only if the 
economic characteristics and risks of 
the embedded derivative are not closely 
related to the economic characteristics 
and risks of the host and are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. 
Embedded derivatives closely related to 
the host contracts are not separated.

 d. Embedded Foreign Currency Derivatives

  Embedded foreign currency derivatives 
are not separated from the host contract if 
they are closely related. Such embedded 
derivatives are closely related to the 
host contract, if the host contract is not 
leveraged, does not contain any option 
feature and requires payments in one of 
the following currencies:

  •	 The functional currency of any 
substantial party to that contract

  •	 The currency in which the price of the 
related good or service that is acquired 
or delivered is routinely denominated 
in commercial transactions around 
the world, or

  •	 A currency that is commonly used 
in contracts to purchase or sell non-
financial items in the economic 
environment in which the transaction 
takes place (i.e. relatively liquid and 
stable currency)  

  Foreign currency embedded derivatives 
which do not meet the above criteria are 
separated and the derivative is accounted 
for at fair value through profit and loss. 
The Company currently does not have 



STRATEGIC REPORT  |  STATUTORY REPORT  |  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

67

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

any such derivatives which are not closely 
related.

 e. Offsetting Financial Instruments

  Financial assets and liabilities are offset 
and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 
The legally enforceable right must not 
be contingent on future events and must 
be enforceable in the normal course 
of business and in the event of default, 
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company 
or the counterparty.

1.14 Borrowing Costs

 General and specific borrowing costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised during the period of time 
that is required to complete and prepare the 
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying 
assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale. 

 Investment income earned on the temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending 
their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible 
for capitalisation. 

 Other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they are incurred.

1.15  Employee Benefits

 Short-Term Obligations

 Liabilities for wages and salaries, including 
non-monetary benefits that are expected to 
be settled wholly within 12 months after the 
end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service are recognised in 
respect of employees’ services up to the end 
of the reporting period and are measured 
at the amounts expected to be paid when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are 
presented as current employee benefit 
obligations in the balance sheet.

 Other Long-Term Employee Benefit 
Obligations

 The liabilities for earned leave are not 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service. 
They are therefore measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made 
in respect of services provided by employees 
up to the end of the reporting period using 
the projected unit credit method. The benefits 
are discounted using the market yields at the 
end of the reporting period that have terms 
approximating to the terms of the related 
obligation. 

 Remeasurements as a result of experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

 The obligations are presented as current 
liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity 
does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period, regardless of when the 
actual settlement is expected to occur.

 Post-Employment Obligations

 The Company operates the following post-
employment schemes:

 -  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity, 
and

 -  Defined contribution plans such as 
provident fund and superannuation fund.

 a. Defined Benefit Plans

  i. Gratuity Obligations

   The liability or asset recognised 
in the balance sheet in respect of 
defined benefit gratuity plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan 
assets. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit 
method.



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

68

   The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation denominated in 
INR is determined by discounting the 
estimated future cash outflows by 
reference to market yields at the end 
of the reporting period on government 
bonds that have terms approximating 
to the terms of the related obligation. 
The benefits which are denominated 
in currency other than INR, the cash 
flows are discounted using market 
yields determined by reference to 
high-quality corporate bonds that 
are denominated in the currency in 
which the benefits will be paid, and 
that have terms approximating to the 
terms of the related obligation.

   The net interest cost is calculated 
by applying the discount rate to the 
net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of 
plan assets. This cost is included in 
employee benefit expense in the 
statement of profit and loss.

   Remeasurement gains and losses 
arising from experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognised in the period in 
which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the 
statement of changes in equity and in 
the balance sheet.

   Remeasurements are not reclassified 
to profit and loss in the subsequent 
periods.

   Changes in the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from plan amendments 
or curtailments are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss as past 
service cost.

 b. Defined Contribution Plans

  i. Provident Fund, Employee State 
Insurance Corporation (ESIC) and 
Labour Welfare Fund (LWF).

   The Contribution towards provident 
fund, ESIC, LWF for certain 
employees is made to the regulatory 
authorities where the Company has 
no further obligations. Such benefits 
are classified as Defined Contribution 
Schemes as the Company does not 
carry any further obligations apart 
from the contributions made on a 
monthly basis.

  ii. Superannuation Fund

   Contribution towards superannuation 
fund for certain employees is made 
to defined contribution scheme 
administered by insurance Company 
where the Company has no further 
obligations. Such benefits are 
classified as Defined Contribution 
Schemes as the Company does not 
carry any further obligations, apart 
from contribution made on monthly 
basis.

 Bonus Plan

 The Company recognises a liability and 
an expense for bonuses. The Company 
recognises a provision where contractually 
obliged or where there is a past practice that 
has created a constructive obligation.

1.16 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

 a. Provisions 

  Provisions for legal claims, service 
warranties, volume discounts and returns 
are recognised when the Company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of past events, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation and the amount can 
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operating losses.

  Provisions for restructuring are recognised 
by the Company when it has developed a 
detailed formal plan for restructuring and 
has raised a valid expectation in those 
affected that the Company will carry out 
the restructuring by starting to implement 
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the plan or announcing its main features 
to those affected by it.

  Where there are a number of similar 
obligations, the likelihood that an 
outflow will be required in settlement 
is determined by considering the class 
of obligations as a whole. A provision 
is recognised even if the likelihood of 
an outflow with respect to any one item 
included in the same class of obligations 
may be small. 

  Provisions are measured at the present 
value of management’s best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. 
The discount rate used to determine the 
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. The increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised 
as interest expense.

  The measurement of provision for 
restructuring includes only direct 
expenditures arising from the 
restructuring, which are both necessarily 
entailed by the restructuring and not 
associated with the ongoing activities of 
the Company.

 b. Contingent Liabilities 

  Contingent liabilities are disclosed when 
there is a possible obligation arising from 
past events the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of 
the Company or a present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle or a reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

 c. Contingent Assets 

  Contingent Assets are disclosed, where 
an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. An entity shall not recognise 
a contingent asset unless the recovery is 
virtually certain.

1.17 Contributed Equity

 Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental 
costs directly attributable to the issue of new 
shares or options are shown in equity as a 
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

1.18  Dividends

 Provision is made for the amount of any 
dividend declared, being appropriately 
authorised and no longer at the discretion 
of the entity, on or before the end of the 
reporting period but not distributed at the end 
of the reporting period.

1.19  Earnings Per Share

 Basic Earnings Per Share

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by 
dividing the profit attributable to owners of the 
Company by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the financial 
year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity 
shares issued during the year and excluding 
treasury shares. (Note 41)

 Diluted Earnings Per Share

 Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures 
used in the determination of basic earnings 
per share to take into account the after income 
tax effect of interest and other financing costs 
associated with dilutive potential equity 
shares, and the weighted average number of 
additional equity shares that would have been 
outstanding assuming the conversion of all 
dilutive potential equity shares.

1.20   Segment Reporting

 Operating segments are reported in a manner 
consistent with the internal reporting provided 
to the chief operating decision maker.

 The managing director, who has been 
identified as the chief operating decision 
maker, assesses the financial performance 
and position of the Company and makes 
strategic decisions. Refer Note 48 for the 
segment information presented.
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1.21   Rounding of Amounts

 All amounts disclosed in the financial 
statements and notes have been rounded 
off to the nearest lakhs with two decimal as 
per the requirement of Schedule III, unless 
otherwise stated.

1.22   New Standards/ Amendments to Existing      
  Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

 Following are the amendments to existing 
standards which have been issued by The 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) that are 
not effective for the reporting period and have 
not been early adopted by the Company:

 Ind AS 115- Revenue from contracts with 
customers

 Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with 
customers’ deals with revenue recognition 
and establishes principles for reporting useful 
information to users of financial statements 
about the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising 
from an entity’s contracts with customers. 

 Revenue is recognised when a customer 
obtains control of a promised good or service 
and thus has the ability to direct the use and 
obtain the benefits from the good or service 
in an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods and services. The 
standard replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and 
Ind AS 11 Construction contracts and related 
appendices. 

 A new five-step process must be applied 
before revenue can be recognised: 

 1.  Identify contracts with customers 

 2.  Identify the separate performance 
obligation 

 3.  Determine the transaction price of the 
contract 

 4.  Allocate the transaction price to each of 
the separate performance obligations, 
and 

 5.  Recognise the revenue as each 
performance obligation is satisfied. 

  The new standard is mandatory for financial 
years commencing on or after 1 April 2018 
and early application is not permitted. The 
standard permits either a full retrospective 
or a modified retrospective approach for the 
adoption.

  Ind AS 21- Foreign Currency Transactions 
and Advance Consideration

  The MCA has notified Appendix B to Ind AS 
21, Foreign currency transactions and advance 
consideration. The appendix clarifies how 
to determine the date of transaction for the 
exchange rate to be used on initial recognition 
of a related asset, expense or income where 
an entity pays or receives consideration in 
advance for foreign currency-denominated 
contracts. 

  For a single payment or receipt, the date of the 
transaction should be the date on which the 
entity initially recognises the non-monetary 
asset or liability arising from the advance 
consideration (the prepayment or deferred 
income/contract liability). If there are multiple 
payments or receipts for one item, date of 
transaction should be determined as above 
for each payment or receipt. 

  The appendix can be applied: 

  •	 Retrospectively for each period 
presented applying Ind AS 8; 

  •	 Prospectively to items in scope of the 
appendix that are initially recognised 

  •	 On or after the beginning of the 
reporting period in which the 
appendix is first applied  (i.e. 1 April 
2018 for entities with March year-
end); or 

  •	 From the beginning of a prior 
reporting period presented as 
comparative information (i.e. 1 April 
2017 for entities with March year-
end).
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   Ind AS 40- Investment Property 
(Transfers of Investment Property)

  The amendments clarify that transfers 
to, or from, investment property can 
only be made if there has been a change 
in use that is supported by evidence. A 
change in use occurs when the property 
meets, or ceases to meet, the definition 
of investment property. A change in 
intention alone is not sufficient to support 
a transfer. The list of evidence for a 
change of use in the standard was re-
characterised as a nonexhaustive list of 
examples and scope of these examples 
have been expanded to include assets 
under construction/development and not 
only transfer of completed properties. 

  The amendment provides two transition 
options. Entities can choose to apply the 
amendment: 

  •	 Retrospectively without the use of 
hindsight; or 

  •	 Prospectively to changes in use 
that occur on or after the date of 
initial application (i.e. 1 April 2018 
for entities with March year-end). At 
that date, an entity shall reassess the 
classification of properties held at 
that date and, if applicable, reclassify 
properties to reflect the conditions 
that exist as at that date.

   Ind AS 12- Income Taxes (Recognition 
of Deferred Tax Assets on Unrealised 
Losses)

  The amendments clarify the accounting 
for deferred taxes where an asset is 
measured at fair value and that fair value 
is below the asset’s tax base. They also 
clarify certain other aspects of accounting 
for deferred tax assets set out below:

  •	 A temporary difference exists 
whenever the carrying amount of an 
asset is less than its tax base at the 
end of the reporting period. 

  •	 The estimate of future taxable profit 

may include the recovery of some 
of an entity’s assets for more than 
its carrying amount if it is probable 
that the entity will achieve this. For 
example, when a fixed-rate debt 
instrument is measured at fair value, 
however, the entity expects to hold 
and collect the contractual cash flows 
and it is probable that the asset will be 
recovered for more than its carrying 
amount. 

  •	 Where the tax law restricts the source 
of taxable profits against which 
particular types of deferred tax assets 
can be recovered, the recoverability 
of the deferred tax assets can only be 
assessed in combination with other 
deferred tax assets of the same type. 

  •	 Tax deductions resulting from the 
reversal of deferred tax assets are 
excluded from the estimated future 
taxable profit that is used to evaluate 
the recoverability of those assets. 
This is to avoid double counting the 
deductible temporary differences 
in such assessment. An entity shall 
apply the amendments to Ind AS 
12 retrospectively in accordance 
with Ind AS 8. However, on initial 
application of the amendment, the 
change in the opening equity of the 
earliest comparative period may 
be recognised in opening retained 
earnings (or in another component 
of equity, as appropriate), without 
allocating the change between 
opening retained earnings and other 
components of equity. 

Note 2: Critical Estimates and Judgements

 The preparation of financial statements 
requires the use of accounting estimates 
which, by definition, will seldom equal the 
actual results. Management also needs to 
exercise judgement in applying the Company’s 
accounting policies. This note provides an 
overview of the areas that involved a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, and of 
items which are more likely to be materially 
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adjusted due to estimates and assumptions 
turning out to be different than those originally 
assessed. Detailed information about each of 
these estimates and judgements is included 
in relevant notes together with information 
about the basis of calculation for each affected 
line item in the financial statements

 Critical Estimates and Judgements

 a. Estimation of Current Tax Expense and 
Deferred Income Tax

  The calculation of the Company’s tax 
charge necessarily involves a degree of 
estimation and judgement in respect of 
certain items whose tax treatment cannot 
be finally determined until resolution 
has been reached with the relevant tax 
authority or, as appropriate, through a 
formal legal process. The final resolution 
of some of these items may give rise to 
material profits/losses and/or cash flows. 
Significant judgments are involved in 
determining the provision for income 
taxes, including amount expected to 
be paid/recovered for uncertain tax 
positions. (Refer Note 35).

  The recognition of deferred income tax 
assets/ liabilities is based upon whether it 
is more likely than not that sufficient and 
suitable taxable profits will be available in 
the future against which the reversal of 
temporary differences can be deducted. 
To determine the future taxable profits, 
reference is made to the latest available 
profit forecasts.

 b. Estimation of Provisions & Contingent 
Liabilities. 

  The Company exercises judgement in 
measuring and recognising provisions 
and the exposures to contingent liabilities 
which is related to pending litigation or 
other outstanding claims. Judgement 
is necessary in assessing the likelihood 
that a pending claim will succeed, or 
a liability will arise, and to quantify the 
possible range of the financial settlement. 
Because of the inherent uncertainty in this 

evaluation process, actual liability may be 
different from the originally estimated as 
provision. (Refer Note 39).

 c. Estimated useful life of Property, Plant 
and Equipment

  Property, Plant and Equipment represent 
a significant proportion of the asset base 
of the Company. The charge in respect 
of periodic depreciation is derived after 
determining an estimate of an asset’s 
expected useful life and the expected 
residual value at the end of its life. 
The useful lives and residual values 
of Company’s assets are determined 
by management at the time the asset 
is acquired and reviewed periodically, 
including at each financial year end. The 
lives are based on historical experience 
with similar assets as well as anticipation 
of future events, which may impact their 
life, such as changes in technology. 
For the relative size of the Company’s 
property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets (Refer Note 3 and 4).

 d.  Estimation of Provision for Inventory

  The Company writes down inventories to 
net realisable value based on an estimate 
of the realisability of inventories. Write 
downs on inventories are recorded where 
events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the balances may not 
realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of estimates of 
net selling prices of the down-graded 
inventories. Where the expectation is 
different from the original estimate, 
such difference will impact the carrying 
value of inventories and write-downs of 
inventories in the periods in which such 
estimate has been changed. Refer Note 9 
for details of inventory and provisions.

 e. Estimation of Defined Benefit Obligation

  The present value of the defined benefit 
obligations depends on a number of 
factors that are determined on an actuarial 
basis using a number of assumptions. 
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The assumptions used in determining the 
net cost (income) for post employments 
plans include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact 
the carrying amount of such obligations.

  The Company determines the appropriate 
discount rate at the end of each year. 
This is the interest rate that should be 
used to determine the present value of 
estimated future cash outflows expected 
to be required to settle the defined 
benefit obligations. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, the Company 
considers the interest rates of government 
bonds of maturity approximating the 
terms of the related plan liability. Refer 
Note 31 for the details of the assumptions 
used in estimating the defined benefit 
obligation.

 f. Estimated fair value of Financial 
Instruments.

  The fair value of financial instruments 
that are not traded in an active market is 
determined using valuation techniques. 
The Management uses its judgement to 
select a variety of methods and make 
assumptions that are mainly based on 
market conditions existing at the end 
of each reporting period. For details of  
the key assumptions used and the impact 
of changes to these assumptions see 
Note 36.
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Note 4: Intangible Assets

Particulars
Computer 
Software 

Total

Year ended March 31, 2017

Gross carrying amount

Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016 41.71 41.71 

Additions 40.86 40.86 

Closing gross carrying amount 82.57 82.57 

Accumulated amortisation

Amortisation charge during the year 16.05 16.05 

Closing accumulated amortisation 16.05 16.05 

Net Carrying amount as at March 
31, 2017

66.52 66.52 

Year ended March 31, 2018

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 82.57 82.57 

Additions 59.50 59.50 

Disposals  (25.26)  (25.26)

Closing gross carrying amount 116.81 116.79 

Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 16.05 16.05 

Amortisation charge during the year 22.61 22.61 

Amortisation on disposals  (5.32)  (5.32)

Closing accumulated amortisation 33.34 33.34 

Net carrying amount as at  
March 31, 2018

83.47 83.47 

Note 5: Non-Current Investments

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

(A) Quoted 

Welspun India Limited 
Nil (March 31, 2017: 14,850, 
April 1, 2016: 14,850) equity 
shares of R 1 each fully paid up 

 -    12.95  14.75 

Welspun Investments and 
Commercials Limited 
Nil (March 31, 2017: 67, April 1, 
2016: 67) equity shares of R 10 
each fully paid up 

 -    0.06  0.04 

(B) Unquoted 

Welspun Steel Limited 
Nil (March 31, 2017: 100, April 
1, 2016: 100) equity shares of R 
10 each fully paid up 

 -    0.02  0.02 

 Total   -    13.03  14.81 

Note 6: Non-Current Financial Assets - Other 
Financial Assets 

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Security deposits  7.01  18.75  8.04 

Margin deposits with banks  -    7.17  7.17 

Interest accrued on above 
deposits 

 -    0.57  0.08 

 Total   7.01  26.49  15.29 

Note 7: Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Deferred tax assets 

Unabsorbed tax losses - 
depreciation 

 2,003.11  1,606.75  1,780.07 

Employee benefits / expenses 
allowable on payment basis 

 311.00  269.08  225.72 

MAT credit entitlement  4,789.81  4,607.11  3,589.00 

Total (A)  7,103.92  6,482.94  5,594.79 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Depreciation on property, 
plant, equipment and intangible 
assets 

 4,643.05  4,164.34  3,533.64 

Total (B)  4,643.05  4,164.34  3,533.64 

Net defered tax assets /
(liabilities) 

 2,460.87  2,318.60  2,061.15 

Note: 
Unrecognised deferred tax asset on temporary differences relating 
to unused tax losses (capital loss) : R 742.39 lakhs (March 31, 2017 :  
R 742.39 lakhs, April 1, 2016 : R 742.39 lakhs).  This will expire in various 
years upto financial year 2021-22. 

Note 8: Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Capital advances   1,976.62  1,130.90  1,156.87 

Prepaid expenses   29.66  29.47  21.98 

Balances with Government 
authorities 

 226.24  279.29  217.30 

Less : Provision for doubtful 
balances 

 -    (217.30)  (217.30)

Total   2,232.52  1,222.36  1,178.85 
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Note 9: Inventories

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

 Raw Materials 

 -In stock  2,627.49  2,526.72  1,851.27 

 -In transit  141.35  -    -   

 Goods-in-process  1,350.48  1,014.01  692.88 

 Finished goods 

 -In stock  2,815.07  2,138.09  1,250.42 

 -In transit  595.88  575.81  474.04 

Stores, spares and packing 
material 

 1,461.38  1,445.37  1,400.91 

 Total   8,991.65  7,700.00  5,669.52 

Refer Note 1.12 for basis of valuation

Note 10: Current Investments

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

UTI Bond Fund - Growth: Units 
Nil (March 31 2017: 27,70,398, 
April 1, 2016: Nil) of R 49.94 
each 

 -    1,383.45  -   

UTI Spread Fund - Growth: 
Units Nil (March 31, 2017: 
14,04,403, April 1, 2016: Nil) of 
R 22.12 each 

 -    310.61  -   

UTI Liquid Cash Plan - 
Institutional - Growth: Units 
24,714 (March 31, 2017: Nil, 
April 1, 2016: Nil) of R 2,836.79 
each 

 701.09  -    -   

 Total   701.09  1,694.06  -   

Note 11: Trade Receivables -  Unsecured, 
Considered Good

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Trade receivables  7,881.26  4,813.17  5,817.46 

Receivables from related 
parties (Refer Note 47) 

 687.61  1,307.54  495.83 

Total   8,568.87  6,120.71  6,313.29 

Note 12: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Balance with banks in current 
accounts 

 753.39  901.56  3,832.53 

Cash on hand  17.21  12.30  3.59 

Total   770.60  913.86  3,836.12 

Notes: 
There are restricted bank balances on account of unpaid dividend - 
R 0.36 lakhs (March 31, 2017 : R 0.36 lakhs, April 1, 2016 : R 0.36 lakhs). 

Note 13: Bank Balances Other Than Cash and 
Cash Equivalents Above

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Balance with banks in: 

- In escrow accounts [Refer 
Note (a) below] 

 534.60  310.27  415.47 

- In margin money deposits 
with banks having original 
maturity period upto twelve 
months [Refer Note (b) below] 

 1,512.87  1,184.55  1,241.91 

Total   2,047.47  1,494.82  1,657.38 

Notes: 
(a)  Balances in escrow accounts are restricted bank balances against 

maturities and interest payments of borrowings.  
(b)  Margin money deposits with banks having maturity period more 

than 12 months are disclosed under "Non-current financial assets 
- Other financial assets" (Refer Note 6).

Note 14: Current Financial Assets - Loans 
Unsecured, Considered Good

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2018

As at  
March 31, 

2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Loans and advances to 
employees 

 97.28  71.20  39.12 

Total   97.28  71.20  39.12 
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Note 15: Current Financial Assets - Others

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Security deposits  101.37  25.28  25.28 

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  32.63  30.08  28.41 

Export benefits receivable  61.87  65.73  108.64 

Total  195.87  121.09  162.33 

Note 16: Other Current Assets

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 
2018

As at
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Assets held for disposal  7.49  2.50  -   

Advances to vendors (recoverable 
in cash or kind) 

 260.89  692.03  506.23 

Prepaid Expenses  160.55  117.18  96.64 

Balances with government authorities  3,159.52  1,756.74  2,048.00 

Other receivables  193.29  214.60  216.01 

Total   3,781.74  2,783.05  2,866.88 

Note 17: (a): Equity Share Capital

Particulars
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017
 As at 

April 1, 2016 

Authorized equity share capital

9,20,00,000 (March 31, 2017: 9,20,00,000, April 1, 2016: 9,20,00,000) Equity Shares 
of R 10/- each

 9,200.00  9,200.00  9,200.00 

2,80,00,000 (March 31, 2017: 2,80,00,000, April 1, 2016: 2,80,00,000)  
Optionally Convertible Cumulative  Preference Shares of R 10/- each

 2,800.00  2,800.00  2,800.00 

12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

45,589,568 (March 31, 2017: 3,92,39,568, April 1, 2016: 3,92,39,568) Equity Shares 
of  R 10/- each fully paid up

 4,558.96  3,923.96  3,923.96 

Total   4,558.96  3,923.96  3,923.96 

i. Movement in Equity Share Capital

Particulars
Number  
of equity 

shares
 R in Lakhs 

As at April 1, 2016  39,239,568  3,923.96 

Add/(less): Increase/ (decrease) during the 
year 

 -    -   

As at March 31, 2017  39,239,568  3,923.96 

Add:  Preferential allotment of equity shares 
to holding Company  
(Refer Note 17(a)(iv) below) 

 6,350,000  635.00 

As at March 31, 2018  45,589,568  4,558.96 

ii. Terms/ Rights Attached to Equity Shares

 The Company has only one class of equity 
shares having a par value of R 10 per share. All 
issued shares rank pari-passu and have same 
voting rights per share. The Company declares 
and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The final 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the 
holders of the equity shares will be entitled 
to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of preferential amounts. The 
distribution will be in proportion to the number 
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

iii.   Shares Reserved for Issue Under Warrants

 43,16,666 warrants of R 75 per warrant have 
been issued and allotted to Mandawewala 
Enterprises Limited on 8th March 2018. 25% 
of the face value is paid at the time of allotment 
and balance 75% is payable on conversion 
into equity shares at the option of holder of 
the warrant, within 18 months from the date 
of allotment.

iv. Equity Shares Held by Holding Company

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Mandawewala Enterprises 
Limited 

 31,913,632  25,563,632  25,563,632 

6,350,000 equity shares of R 10 at a premium of 
R 65 per share have been issued and allotted to 
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited, during the 
year. Out of this, 6,000,000 equity shares have 
been issued and allotted by converting corporate 
loan of R 4,500 lakhs given by Mandawewala 
Enterprises Limited.
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v. Details of Shareholders Holding More Than 
5% Equity Shares

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 2016 

Mandawewala 
Enterprises 
Limited 

 Number 
of equity 
shares 

 31,913,632  25,563,632  25,563,632 

Mandawewala 
Enterprises 
Limited 

 Percentage 
of holding 70.00% 65.15% 65.15%

Note 17 (b): Other Equity - Reserves and Surplus

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Capital reserve  2,664.93  2,664.93  2,664.93 

Capital redemption reserve  293.36  293.36  293.36 

Debenture redemption reserve  -    107.06  107.06 

Securities premium reserve  4,168.05  40.55  40.55 

General reserve  107.06  -    -   

Retained earnings  17,198.65  16,404.47  12,404.01 

 Total   24,432.05  19,510.37  15,509.91 

Movement: 

- Capital reserve 

As per last balance sheet  2,664.93  2,664.93  2,664.93 

Add/(less): Changes during the 
year 

 -    -    -   

 2,664.93  2,664.93  2,664.93 

- Capital redemption reserve 

As per last balance sheet  293.36  293.36  293.36 

Add/(less): Changes during the 
year 

 -    -    -   

 293.36  293.36  293.36 

 - Debenture redemption reserve 

 As per last balance sheet  107.06  107.06  107.06 

(less): Transferred to general 
reserve during the year 

(107.06)  -    -   

 -    107.06  107.06 

 - Securities premium reserve 

 As per last balance sheet  40.55  40.55  40.55 

Add: Premium received on 
preferential allotment of equity 
shares to holding Company 
(Refer Note 17(a)(i)) 

 4,127.50  -    -   

 4,168.05  40.55  40.55 

 - General reserve  

As per last balance sheet  -    -    -   

 Add:Transferred from debenture 
redemption reserve during the  
year 

 107.06  -    -   

 107.06  -    -   

Particulars As at
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

  - Retained earnings 

 As per last balance sheet  16,404.47  12,404.01  7,607.10 

 Add/(Less):  

 Profit for the year  800.05  4,053.87  4,796.91 

Item of other comprehensive 
income recognized directly in 
retained    earnings 

 - Remeasurement gains/(losses) 
on defined benefit plan (net of tax) 

(5.87) (53.41)  -   

 17,198.65  16,404.47  12,404.01 

Note 17 (c): Other Equity - Money Received 
Against Share Warrants

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

As per last balance sheet  -    -    -   

Add: Share warrants issued to 
Mandawewala Enterprises Limited  
[Refer Note 17(a)(iii)] 

 809.37  -    -   

Total  809.37  -    -   

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

i. Capital Reserve

 Capital reserve represents capital surplus and 
is not available for distribution as dividend.

ii. Securities Premium Reserve 

 Securities premium is used to record the 
premium received on issue of shares. The 
reserve is utilized in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

iii. Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR)

  CRR is created on redemption of Preference 
Shares in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act.

iv. Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR)

  DRR was created on issue of Debentures in 
the earlier years. This has been transferred to 
General Reserve as the Debentures have been 
redeemed.

v. General Reserve 

  General Reserve represents appropriation of 
profits by the Company.

vi. Retained Earnings  

  Retained earnings represent the accumulated 
undistributed earnings.
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Note 18: Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017
 As at 

April 1, 2016 

 Secured 

 Term loans from banks 

 - Rupee loans  16,712.90 15,423.05 14,200.43 

 - Foreign currency loans  2,668.27 4,127.25 5,366.13 

 Unsecured, considered good 

Inter-corporate deposits from related parties  1,200.00 2,000.00  -   

Amount disclosed under the head "Current maturities of long-term borrowings'' (4,174.31) (3,575.86) (2,884.96)

 Total  16,406.86 17,974.44 16,681.60 

Note:    
The rate of interest on the Non-current borrowings in the table above are in range of 9.5% to 11% (March 31, 2018), 11 % to 12 %  (March 31, 2017) 
and 11.45% to 12.70% (April 1, 2016). These loans are eligible for Central and State Government interest subsidies/rebates.

Particulars Last installment  due Terms of Repayment
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company

January 2019 Repayable in 3 
quarterly installments 
commencing from July 
2018

 325.57  -    -   

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

March 2019 Repayable in 12 
quarterly installments 
commencing from June 
2016

 933.74  1,804.23  2,487.23 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

January 2021 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments  
commencing from  April 
2014

 2,486.95  3,189.98  3,886.94 

External Commerical Borrowings is secured by 1st pari passu 
charge over the present and future fixed assets, all movable 
and immovable properties and 2nd pari passu charged over 
current assets of the company 

March 2021 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from June 
2014

 2,668.27  3,370.90  4,175.39 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

April 2021 Repayable in 24 
quarterly installments  
commencing from July 
2015

 740.89  940.41  1,140.00 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

October 2023 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from Jan 
2017

 1,050.01  1,140.01  1,129.02 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

October 2023 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from Jan 
2017

 1,744.20  1,942.60  1,992.27 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

December 2023 Repayable in 26 
quarterly installments 
commencing from July 
2017

 1,350.00  1,500.00  1,500.00 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

March 2024 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from July 
2017

 1,822.56  1,887.91  1,436.75 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

March 2025 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from June 
2018

 2,076.56  1,819.50  378.19 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

June 2025 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from 
October 2018

 1,290.65  200.77  -   
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Particulars Last installment  due Terms of Repayment
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

June 2025 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from 
October 2018

 1,475.57  1,000.12  -   

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge over the 
present and future fixed assets, all movable and immovable 
properties and 2nd pari passu charged over current assets of 
the company 

October 2026 Repayable in 28 
quarterly installments 
commencing from 
December 2019

 1,416.21  -    -   

Foreign Currency Term Loan is secured by 1st pari passu 
charge over the present and future fixed assets, all movable 
and immovable properties and 2nd pari passu charged over 
current assets of the company

February 2018 Repayable in 30 
quarterly installments 
commencing from 
October 2011

 -    753.87  1,190.77 

Rupee term loan is secured by 1st pari passu charge on entire 
current assets with working capital lenders and  2nd pari passu 
charge over the present and future fixed assets

June 2016 Repayable in 4  
quarterly installments  
commencing from 
March  2015

 -    -    250.00 

19381.17 19550.30 19566.56

Note 19:  Non-Current Employee Benefit 
Obligations

Particulars
As at
March 

31, 2018

As at 
March 

31, 2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 31)  672.19  593.90  452.14 

Provision for compensated 
absences (Refer Note 31)

 -    -    -   

Total  672.19  593.90  452.14 

Note 20: Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Secured

 Working capital loan from banks 

 - Rupee loans  2,668.20  1,022.62  1,503.30 

 - Foreign currency loans  1,482.68  628.46  -   

 Unsecured 

 Buyers' credit from banks  854.68  423.77  373.54 

 Total  5,005.56  2,074.85  1,876.84 

Note:  

The  working capital loans, which includes cash credit and packing 
credit from banks, are secured by hypothecation of raw material, stock-
in-process, finished goods, semi finished goods, stores, spares and 
book debts and other current assets of the Company and second charge 
on entire fixed assets of the Company.

Note 21: Trade Payables 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Acceptances  5,055.01  5,101.03  7,170.09 

Due to micro, small and medium 
enterprises (Refer Note 42) 

 45.70  55.22  91.83 

Due to others  5,254.07  4,013.18  2,739.28 

Total  10,354.78  9,169.43  10,001.20 

Note 22: Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Current maturities of long-term 
borrowings (Refer Note 18) 

 4,174.31  3,575.86  2,884.96 

Interest accrued but not due on 
borrowings 

 109.98  116.21  93.76 

Unclaimed dividend (Refer Note 
(a) below) 

 0.36  0.36  0.36 

Creditors for capital purchases  374.44  717.06  249.09 

Security deposits  66.58  67.15  65.77 

Provision for mark to market 
losses on derivative contract 

 3.04  27.61  39.06 

Total  4,728.71  4,504.25  3,333.00 

Note:    

a.  There are no amounts due for payments to the investor Education 
and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 
1956 as at the year end    

 Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 which corresponds 
to Section 205C of the Companies Act 1956 has not yet been 
enforced.
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Note 23: Current Employee Benefit Obligations

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Provision for gratuity (Refer Note 31)  38.69  31.29  36.95 

Provision for compensated 
absences (Refer Note 31)

 170.10  152.32  163.11 

Employee benefit payables  153.08  381.45  515.63 

Total  361.87  565.06  715.69 

Note 24: Current tax Liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Provision for direct tax (net of 
advance tax) 

 -    -    365.03 

Total  -    -    365.03 

Note 25: Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

 Advance from customers  448.67  388.10  349.83 

 Statutory dues  139.50  303.73  253.00 

Total  588.17  691.83  602.83 

Note 26: Revenue from Operations

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Sale of products  84,792.34  81,694.64 

Job work revenue  265.57  -   

Total  85,057.91  81,694.64 

Note 27: Other Operating Income

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Sale of scrap  321.30  288.00 

Export incentives (Refer Note below)  737.83  819.11 

Total  1,059.13  1,107.11 

Note:   
Export incentives includes duty drawback and merchandise export 
incentive scheme. Also, Refer Note 1.5.  

Note 28: Other Income

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017
Exchange difference (net)  185.51  -   
Interest income on:
 - Fixed deposits  97.06  87.35 
 - Others  93.13  57.78 
Profit on sale of current 
investments/investments

 53.18  178.99 

Gain on fair valuation of investment  1.08  7.66 
Dividend income on current 
investments

 -    8.01 

Miscellaneous income  128.99  38.68 
Total  558.95  378.47 

Note 29: Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Raw material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the 
year 

 2,526.72  1,851.27 

Add: Purchases (net)  49,708.18  42,693.04 

 52,234.90  44,544.31 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year  2,768.84  2,526.72 

Total  49,466.06  42,017.59 

Note 30: Changes in Inventories of Finished 
Goods and Goods-In-Process

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Inventory at the end of the year 

Goods-in-process  1,350.48  1,014.01 

Finished goods  3,410.95  2,713.90 

 4,761.43  3,727.91 

Less: Inventory at the beginning of 
the year 

Goods-in-process  1,014.01  692.88 

Finished goods  2,713.90  1,724.46 

 3,727.91  2,417.34 

Total changes in inventories of 
finished goods and goods-in-
process

 (1,033.52)  (1,310.57)
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Note 31: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Salaries, wages and allowances  5,721.52  4,919.14 

Contribution to provident and other 
funds 

 331.54  217.76 

Gratuity  135.89  112.79 

Managerial remuneration  105.38  287.64 

Staff welfare expenses  285.06  297.77 

Total  6,579.39  5,835.10 

I. Defined Contribution Plans 
Particulars Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017
During the year, the Company has 
recognized the following amounts 
in the statement of Profit and Loss:
Employers' Contribution to 
Provident Fund*

298.56  191.36 

Employers' Contribution to 
Employees' State Insurance *

32.60  25.97 

Employers' Contribution to Labour 
welfare fund*

0.38  0.43 

Total  331.54  217.76 

* Included in Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

II. Defined Benefit Plan

Contribution to Gratuity 

The Company provides for every employee who is 
entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary 
last drawn for each completed year of service in 
line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 
same is payable at the time of separation from the 
Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. 

Risk exposure 

These defined benefit plans expose the Company 
to actuarial risk such as longitivity risks, interest 
rate risks, market (investment) risks.
a. Major Assumptions 

Particulars
As at

 March 31, 2018
As at

 March 31, 2017
% p.a. % p.a.

Discount Rate  7.73  7.55 

Salary Escalation Rate *  6.50  6.00 
Rate of Employee Turnover:
-Upto 30 years  3.00  3.00 

-From 31 to 44 years  3.00  2.00 

-Above 44 years  1.00  1.00 

Mortality Rate During Employment 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 

* The estimates for future salary increases considered takes into account 
the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

b. Change in the Present Value of Obligation  

Particulars
As at

 March 31, 2018
As at

 March 31, 2017

Opening Present Value of 
Obligation

625.19 489.10 

Current Service Cost 88.69 73.66 

Interest Cost 47.20 39.13 

Total amount recognized in profit 
or loss

135.89 112.79 

Remeasurement

(Gain)/Loss from change in 
demographic assumptions and 
experience adjustments

(35.20) (4.56)

(Gain)/Loss from change in financial 
assumptions

 44.22 86.24 

Total amount recognized in other 
comprehensive income

 9.02 81.68 

Benefit/ Exgratia paid 59.22 58.38 

Closing Present Value of 
Obligation

 710.88  625.19 

c. Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet  

Particulars
As at

 March 31, 2018
As at

 March 31, 2017

Present value of Obligation  710.88  625.19 

Fair Value of Plan Assets  -    -   

Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit) (710.88) (625.19)

Expense recognized in Statement 
of Profit and Loss

 144.91  194.47 

Net (liability)/ Asset Recognized 
in the Balance Sheet

 (710.88)  (625.19)

d. Expenses Recognized in Profit and Loss  

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2018
Year ended

March 31, 2017

Current Service Cost 88.69 73.66 

Interest Cost 47.20 39.13 

Total Expenses recognized in the 
of profit or loss*

135.89 112.79 

* Included in Employee Benefits Expense.

e. Expenses Recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income  

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2018
Year ended

March 31, 2017

Re-measurement  
(Refer Note b above)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on 
Obligation For the year

 9.02  81.68 

Net (Income)/Expenses for the 
Period Recognized in OCI

 9.02  81.68 
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f.  Sensitivity Analysis  

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2018
Year ended

March 31, 2017
Projected Benefit Obligation on 
Current Assumptions

 710.88  625.19 

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in 
Rate of Discounting

(3.07) (2.49)

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in 
Rate of Discounting

3.08 3.70 

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in 
Rate of Salary Increase

3.63 3.77 

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in 
Rate of Salary Increase

(3.60) (2.79)

Delta Effect of +0.5% Change in 
Rate of Employee Turnover*

 -    -   

Delta Effect of -0.5% Change in 
Rate of Employee Turnover*

 -    -   

* Amounts less than R  1000 are denoted by " - "

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption 
while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely 
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to 
significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of 
the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit 
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when 
calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 
analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

g. Defined Benefit Liability and Employer 
Contributions

 The Company considers that the contribution 
rates set at the last valuation date are sufficient 
to eliminate the deficit over the agreed period 
and that regular contributions, which are 
based on service costs, will not increase 
significantly.

 Expected contribution to post-employment 
benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 
2018 is R 150.03 Lakhs.

 The weighted average duration of the defined 
benefit obligation is 11 years (2016 -12 years, 
2015 - 12 years). The expected maturity 
analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Particulars
Less than 

a year
More than 
one year

 Total 

As at March 31, 2018

Defined benefit obligation (gratuity)  38.69  672.19  710.88 

As at March 31, 2017

Defined benefit obligation (gratuity)  31.29  593.90  625.19 

III. Other Employee Benefit

The liability for compensated absences as at year 
end is R 170.10 Lakhs (March 31, 2017: R 152.32 
Lakhs, April 1, 2016: R 163.11 Lakhs) 

Note 32:  Depreciation and Amortization Costs

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment (Refer Note 3)

 3,274.77  3,011.20 

Amortization of intangible assets 
(Refer Note 4)

 22.61  16.05 

Total  3,297.38  3,027.25 

Note 33:  Other Expenses

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017
Stores and spares consumed  2,568.08  2,679.76 

Packing materials consumed  3,315.07  2,750.50 
Dyes and chemicals consumed  4,258.28  3,741.78 
Power, fuel and water  5,720.23  5,094.67 
Increase/(decrease) in excise duty 
on finished goods

(176.72)  71.83 

Contract labour charges  1,403.25  1,014.92 
Repairs and maintenance:
  -Buildings  122.64  130.21 
  -Property, plant and equipment  602.10  482.42 
  -Others  334.82  456.90 
Rent (Refer Note 45)  392.26  298.89 
Rates and taxes  95.46  25.39 
Insurance  141.22  113.80 
Directors sitting fees  19.55  14.64 
Printing and stationery  37.92  34.71 
Travelling and conveyance 
expenses

 494.84  593.27 

Legal and professional charges  542.41  793.87 
Communication charges  74.05  91.75 
Vehicle expenses  121.52  111.28 
Loss on sale/discard of property, 
plant and equipment (net)

 26.60  78.11 

Freight and forwarding expenses  1,624.52  1,153.23 
Exchange difference (net) - 0.05   
Brokerage and commission  1,201.75  1,123.61 
Payment to auditors [Refer Note (a) 
below]

 23.43  20.84 

Donations  10.88  8.15 
Corporate social responsibility 
expenditure

 93.56  87.93 

Miscellaneous expenses  607.10  688.98 
 Total  23,654.82  21,661.49 
Note (a) Payment to auditors for:
As auditor: 
  -Audit fees  19.00  15.00 
  -Tax audit  1.50  2.50 
In other capacities:
  -Certifications  2.60  3.02 
  -Reimbursement of expenses  0.33  0.32 
Total  23.43  20.84 
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Note 34:  Finance Cost

Particulars
Year ended 

March 31, 2018
Year ended 

March 31, 2017

Interest and finance charges on 
financial liabilities (net of interest 
subsidy for year ended March 31, 
2018: R 318.99 lakhs, March 31, 
2017: R 307.86 lakhs)

   - Long term borrowings  1,730.07  1,485.61 

   - Short term borrowings  253.02  183.63 

   - Others  24.71  38.41 

Bank and other financial charges  784.96  564.87 

Total  2,792.76  2,272.52 

Note 35: Income Tax Expense

a. This note provides an analysis of the 
Company's income tax expense, show 
amounts that are recognised directly in equity 
and how the tax expense is affected by non-
assessable and non-deductible items. It also 
explains significant estimates made in relation 
to the Company's tax positions.

 i. Income tax related to items recognised 
directly in profit or loss of the Statement 
of Profit and Loss

Particulars

Year 
Ended

March 31, 
2018

Year 
Ended

March 31, 
2017

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year* 182.70 1,018.10 

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods  -   (33.61)

Current tax (A) 182.70  984.49 

Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets# (617.83) 788.92 

(Decrease)/increase in deferred tax liabilities 478.71 (1,018.10)

Deferred tax (B) (139.12) (229.18)

Income tax expense charged to profit or loss 
(C) = (A) + (B)

43.58 755.31 

*Current Tax : Net of : Nil, March 31, 2017 : R 33.61 lakhs excess 
provision for tax in earlier year written back.

#Deferred Tax : Net of Minimum Alternate Tax Credit availed: R  182.70 
lakhs, March 31, 2017 : R 1,018.10 lakhs.

 ii. Deferred tax related to items recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)

Particulars
Year Ended

March 31, 2018
Year Ended

March 31, 2017

Deferred tax on remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan  3.15 28.27 

Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive income  3.15  28.27 

b. The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at the Indian statutory income tax rate to the 
income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows:

Particulars
Year Ended

March 31, 2018
Year Ended

March 31, 2017

Profit before income tax 843.63 4,809.18 

Expected tax expense at the enacted tax rate in India 291.96 1,664.36 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense:

1) Non-deductible expenses 

  Donations and CSR Expenditure 36.14 33.25 

  Other items 47.08 76.94 

2) Tax benefit items

  Research and development expenditure (191.52)  (439.86) 

  Investment allowance under section 32AC  -   (268.71)

  Other items (139.75) (219.23)

3) Adjustment in deferred tax relating to prior year 0.00 (91.44)

4) Effect of changes in tax rate (0.34)  -   

Income tax expense charged to the statement of profit and loss 43.58 755.31 
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Note 36: Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instruments by Category:

Financial assets Note
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

Amortised 
cost

FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVTPL

 Trade receivables 11  8,568.87  -    6,120.71  -    6,313.29  -   

 Margin money deposits with banks 6, 13  1,512.87  -    1,191.72  -    1,249.08  -   

 Cash and cash equivalents 12  770.60  -    913.86  -    3,836.12  -   

 Investments 5, 10  -    701.09  -    1,707.09  -    14.81 

 Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents above 13  534.60  -    310.27  -    415.47  -   

 Security deposits 6, 15  108.38  -    44.03  -    33.32  -   

 Loans  14  97.28  -    71.20  -    39.12  -   

 Export benefits receivable 15  61.87  -    65.73  -    108.64  -   

 Interest accrued on fixed deposits 6, 15  32.63  -    30.65  -    28.49  -   

Total financial assets  11,687.10  701.09  8,748.17  1,707.09  12,023.52  14.81 

Financial liabilities Note

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

Amortised 
cost

FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVTPL Amortised 
cost

FVTPL

 Borrowings 18, 20, 22  25,586.73  -    23,625.15  -    21,443.40  -   

 Trade payables 21  10,354.78  -    9,169.43  -    10,001.20  -   

 Payable for capital goods 22  374.44  -    717.06  -    249.09  -   

 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 22  109.98  -    116.21  -    93.76  -   

 Security deposits received 22  66.58  -    67.15  -    65.77  -   

 Derivative instruments 22  -    3.04  -    27.61  -    39.06 

 Unclaimed dividend 22  0.36  -    0.36  -    0.36  -   

Total financial liabilities  36,492.87  3.04  33,695.36  27.61  31,853.58  39.06 

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and 
liabilities are included at the amount that would 
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. 
This section explains the judgements and estimates 
made in determining the fair values of the financial 
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured 
at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and 
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indication about the 
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, 
the Company has classified its financial instruments 
into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An 
explanation for each level is given below.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial 
instruments measured using quoted prices. This 
includes listed Equity instruments, exchange 
traded funds and mutual funds that have quoted 

price. The fair value of all equity instruments which 
are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using 
the closing price as at the reporting period. The 
mutual funds are valued using the closing Net 
Assets Value (NAV), NAV represents the price at 
which, the issuer will issue further units and will 
redeem such units of mutual funds to and from the 
investors.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that 
are not traded in an active market is determined 
using valuation techniques which maximise the 
use of observable market data and rely as little as 
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant 
inputs required to fair value an instrument are 
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 
Instruments in the level 2 category for the Company 
include foreign exchange forward contracts.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs 
is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in this level. 
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There are no internal transfers of financial assets 
and financial libilities between Level 1, Level 2, 
Level 3 during the period. The Company's policy is 

to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair 
value hierarchy level as at the end of the reporting 
period.

Financial assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value measurements

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Investments  701.09  -    -    1,707.09  -    -    14.81  -    -   

Financial liabilities

Derivatives not designated as hedges

Foreign exchanges forward cover  -    3.04  -    -    27.61  -    -    39.06  -   

Financial assets and liabilities 
measured at amortised cost for  
which fair values are disclosed 

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets

Margin money deposits with banks  1,512.87  -    -    1,191.72  -    -    1,249.08  -    -   

Security deposits  -    108.38  -    -    44.03  -    -    33.32  -   

Loans  -    97.28  -    -    71.20  -    -    39.12  -   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  32.63  -    -    30.65  -    -    28.49  -    -   

Financial liabilities 

Borrowings  25,586.73  -    -    23,625.15  -    -    21,443.40  -    -   

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  109.98  -    -    116.21  -    -    93.76  -    -   

Security Deposits received  -    66.58  -    -    67.15  -    -    65.77  -   

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash 
and cash equivalents, fixed deposit having maturity 
period upto 12 months and its interest accrued, 
export benefits receivable,  current loans, current 
borrowings, trade payables and other financial 
liabilities are considered to be approximately same 
as their value, due to the short -term maturities of 
these financial assets/liabilities. 

The fair values of fixed deposits having maturity 
period of more than 12 months and its interest 
accrued, non-current security deposits, balances 
with government authorities and non-current 
borrowings are based on discounted cash flows 
using a current borrowing rate. They are classified 
as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy 
due to the use of unobservable inputs. During the 
periods mentioned above, there have been no 
transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Fair 
Value:

Specific valuation techniques used to value 
financial instruments include:

•  The use of quoted market prices or dealer 
quotes for similar instruments.

•  The fair value of foreign exchange forward 
contracts is determined using forward 
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. 

•  The fair value of the remaining financial 
instruments is determined using discounted 
cash flow analysis

•  All of the resulting fair value estimates 
are included in level 2 except for unlisted 
preference shares, where the fair values have 
been determined based on present values 
where the fair values have been determined 
based on present values and the discount 
rates used were adjusted for counterparty or 
own credit risk.
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Note 37: Capital Management

Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital 
is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong 
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 
support its business and provide adequate return 
to shareholders through continuing growth. The 
Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged 
from previous year.

The Company sets the amount of capital required 
on the basis of annual business and long-term 
operating plans which include capital and other 
strategic investments.

The funding requirements are met through a 
mixture of equity, internal fund generation and 
other long term borrowings. The Company's policy 
is to use short-term and long-term borrowings to 
meet anticipated funding requirements.

For the purpose of the Company's capital 
management, equity includes issued capital, 
securities premium and other reserves. Net debt 
includes loans less cash and bank balances. The 
Company manages capital by monitoring gearing 
ratio which is net debt divided by equity plus net 

debt. The Company’s strategy is to maintain a 
gearing ratio within 2:1.

The capital composition is as follows:

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Gross debt (inclusive of long 
term and short term borrowing) 

 25,586.73  23,625.15  21,443.40 

Less: - Cash and bank balances  2,818.07  2,408.68  5,493.50 

Net debt  22,768.66  21,216.47  15,949.90 

Total equity  29,800.38  23,434.33  19,433.87 

Net debt to equity ratio 0.76 0.91 0.82

Loan Covenants

Bank loans contain certain debt covenants relating 
to limitation on indebtedness, debt-equity ratio, 
debt to EBITDA ratio, interest service coverage ratio 
and debt service coverage ratio. The limitation on 
indebtedness covenant gets suspended once the 
Company meets certain prescribed criteria. The 
debt covenant related to limitation on indebtedness 
remained suspended as of the date of adoption of 
the financial statements. The Company has also 
satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the 
respective sanction of bank loan. 

Note 38: Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise 
any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company , derivative financial instruments, such 
as foreign exchange forward contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency risk exposures. 
Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purpose and not as trading or speculative instruments.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, trade 
receivables, derivative financial 
instruments, financial assets 
measured at amortised cost.

Aging analysis
Diversification of bank deposits, 
credit limits and letters of credit 

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts
Availability of committed credit 
lines and borrowing facilities

Market risk – foreign exchange

Future commercial transactions 
Recognised financial assets and 
liabilities not denominated in 
Indian Rupee (INR)

Cash flow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis

Forward Foreign Exchange 
Contracts 

Market risk – interest rate
Long-term borrowings at variable 
rates

Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps

Market risk – security prices Investments in Bonds Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification
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The Company's risk management is carried out 
by a central treasury department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. Company's 
treasury team identifies, evaluates and hedges 
financial risks in close cooperation with the 
Company’s respective department heads. The 
Board provides written principles for overall 
risk management, as well as policies covering 
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, 
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative 
financial instruments and non-derivative financial 
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

A.  Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not 
meet its obligation under a financial instrument 
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. 
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities (primarly trade receivables) 
and from its financing activities, including deposits 
with bank and financial institution, foreign exhange 
transactions and other financial instruments. To 
manage this, the Company periodically assesses 
the financial reliability of counter party, taking into 
account the financial condition, current economic 
trends, analysing the risk profile of the counter 
party and the analysis of historical bad debts and 
ageing of accounts receivable etc. Individual risk 
limits are set accordingly.

The Company determines default by considering 
the business environment in which the Company 
operates and other macro-economic factors. The 
Company considers the probability of default upon 
initial recognition of asset and whether there has 
been a significant increase in credit risk on an 
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. 
To assess whether there is a significant increase 
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a 
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting 
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial 
recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive 
forwarding-looking information such as: 

i.  Actual or expected significant adverse 
changes in business; 

ii.  Actual or expected significant changes in the 
operating results of the counterparty;

iii.  Financial or economic conditions that are 
expected to cause a significant change to the 
counterparty's ability to meet its obligations;

iv.  Significant increase in credit risk on 
other financial instruments of the same 
counterparty; 

v. Significant changes in the value of the 
collateral supporting the obligation or in the 
quality of the third-party guarantees.

Financial assets are written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a 
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with 
the Company.

i. Trade Receivables

 The Company extends credit to customers 
in normal course of business. Credit risk 
is managed thorugh credit approvals, 
establishing credit limits, credit track record 
in the market and continously monitoring the 
creditworthiness of the customer. Outstanding 
customer receivables are regularly monitored 
and followed up. 

 The Company evaluates the concentration 
of risk with respect to trade receivables as 
limited, as its customers are located in several 
jurisdictions and industries. Sales made in 
domestic market by the Company are covered 
by agents appointed by the Company, the 
agents appointed are Del Credere agents 
hence most of the credit risk relating to  
customers is shifted to agents and the 
comapny is absolved from the same. For sales 
made to export customers, the risk is limited 
as most of the sales are covered by ECGC, 
also the customer can clear the goods from 
the port only once we receive 100% advance 
from them, for markets which are risky like 
Syrian market the goods are dispatched only 
when we receive 100% advance payment 
from customers. The Company has also taken 
advances and security deposits from certain 
customers, which mitigate the credit risk 
further. 

 The Company extends credit to customers 
in normal course of business. The Company 
considers factors such as credit track record in 
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the market and past dealings for extension of 
credit to customers. The Company monitors 
the payment track record of the customers. 
Outstanding customer receivables are 
regularly monitored. The Company evaluates 
the concentration of risk with respect to 
trade receivables as low, as its customers are 
located in several jurisdictions and industries 
and operate in largely independent markets. 
The Company has also taken advances and 
security deposits from certain customers, 
which mitigate the credit risk to an extent.

ii. Financial Instruments and Cash Deposits

 The Company maintains exposure in Cash 
and Cash equivalents, term deposits with 
banks and investments in mutual funds the 
same is done after considering factors such 
as track record, size of the institution, market 
reputation and service standards. Generally, 
the balances are maintained with the 
institutions from whom the Company has also 
availed borrowings. Individual risk limits are 
set for each counter party based on financial 
position, credit rating and past experience. 
Credit risk and concentration of exposure are 
actively monitored by the Company.

 The Company considers factors such as 
track record, size of the institution, market 
reputation and service standards to select 
the banks with which balances and deposits 
are maintained. Generally, the balances are 
maintained with the institutions from whom 
the Company has also availed borrowings. 

iii.  The ageing analysis of the trade receivables 
(other than due from related parties) has 
been considered from the date the invoice 
falls due.

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Not Due  5,971.66  2,259.52  4,782.12 

Up to 3 months  1,696.38  2,482.24  789.61 

3 to 6 months  129.40  39.64  217.86 

More than 6 months  83.82  31.77  27.87 

Total  7,881.26  4,813.17  5,817.46 

B. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the 
Company will not be able to settle or meet its 
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. For 
the Company, liquidity risk arises from obligations 
on account of financial liabilities – borrowings, 
trade payables, derivative instruments and other 
financial liabilities.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Company’s reputation. The Company manages 
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, 
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual 
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of 
the financial assets and liabilities.The Company 
regularly monitors liquidity position through 
rolling forecast based on estimated free cash flow 
generated from business.

i.  Financing Arrangements

 The Company had access to the following 
undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the 
reporting period:

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Floating rate

- Expiring within one year 
(packing credit, bank overdraft 
and other facilities) 

 9,179.87  5,650.71  4,761.80 

- Expiring beyond one year 
(Term Loans)

 16,406.86  17,974.44  16,681.60 

Total  25,586.73  23,625.15  21,443.40 

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any 
time and may be terminated by the bank without 
notice.

ii.  Maturities of Financial Liabiliities

 The tables below analyse the Company's 
financial liabilities into relevant maturity 
groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for:

 -   All non derivative financial liabilities, and

 - net and gross settled derivative financial 
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instruments for which the contractual 
maturities are essential for an understanding 
of the timing of the cash flows.

 The amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows:

As at  
March 31, 2018

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1  and 5 

years

Beyond 5 
years

Total

Maturities of non – 
derivative financial 
liabilities 

Long term 
borrowings 

 4,174.31  13,262.79  3,144.07  20,581.17 

Short term 
borrowings 

 5,005.56  -    -    5,005.56 

Interest Payable  109.98  -    -    109.98 

Trade payables  10,354.78  -    -    10,354.78 

Other financial 
liabilities 

 441.38  -    -    441.38 

Total  20,086.01  13,262.79  3,144.07  36,492.87 

Maturities of 
derivative financial 
liabilities 

 *Foreign Exchange 
Forward Contracts 

(643.35)  -    -   (643.35)

Total 19,442.66 13,262.79 3,144.07 35,849.52 

*Provision for mark to market losses on derivative contract recognised 
at R 3.04 lakhs. Refer Note 22.

As at  
March 31, 2017

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1  and 5 

years

Beyond 5 
years

Total

Maturities of non – 
derivative financial 
liabilities 

Long term 
borrowings

 3,575.86  16,420.34  1,554.10  21,550.30 

Short term 
borrowings

 2,074.85  -    -    2,074.85 

Interest Payable  116.21  -    -    116.21 

Trade payables  9,169.43  -    -    9,169.43 

Other financial 
liabilities

 784.57  -    -    784.57 

Total 15,720.92 16,420.34 1,554.10 33,695.36 

Maturities of 
derivative financial 
liabilities

*Foreign Exchange 
Forward Contracts

(1,661.11)  -    -   (1,661.11)

Total 14,059.81 16,420.34 1,554.10 32,034.25 

*Provision for mark to market losses on derivative contract recognised 
at R 27.61 lakhs. Refer Note 22.

As at  
April 1, 2017

Less than 
1 year

Between 
1  and 5 

years

Beyond 5 
years

Total

Maturities of non – 
derivative financial 
liabilities 

Long term 
borrowings 

 2,884.96  16,228.03  453.57  19,566.56 

Short term 
borrowings 

 1,876.84  -    -    1,876.84 

Interest payable  93.76  -    -    93.76 

Trade payables  10,001.20  -    -    10,001.20 

Other financial 
liabilities 

 315.22  -    -    315.22 

Total  15,171.98  16,228.03  453.57  31,853.58 

Maturities of 
derivative financial 
liabilities 

*Foreign Exchange 
Forward Contracts 

(1,125.70)  -    -   (1,125.70)

Total  14,046.28  16,228.03  453.57  30,727.88 

*Provision for mark to market losses on derivative contract recognised 
at R 39.06 lakhs. Refer Note 22.

C Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, 
such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices will affect the Company's income or 
the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  
The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the 
return. The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact 
of movements in market variables on the carrying 
value of post-employment benefit obligations 
provisions and on the non-financial assets and 
liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant profit and 
loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in 
respective market risks. 

The Company’s activities expose it to risks on 
account of changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates and interest rates. The Company uses 
derivative financial instruments such as foreign 
exchange forward contracts of varying maturity 
depending upon the underlying contract as a risk 
management strategy to manage its exposures to 
foreign exchange fluctuations and interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i Foreign Currency Risk 

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value 
or future cash flows fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. The Company is 
exposed to foreign exchange risk on their 
receivables, payables and foreign currency 
loans which are mainly held in the United 
State Dollar ("USD"), the Euro (“EUR”), British 
Pound ("GBP"), the Swiss Franc ("CHF") and 
Japanese Yen ("JPY"). Consequently, the 
Company is exposed primarily to the risk 
that the exchange rate of the Indian Rupees  
(“INR”) relative to the USD, the EUR, the CHF, 
and the JPY may change in a manner that has 

a material effect on the reported values of 
the Company’s assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in these foreign currencies.

 The Company evaluates exchange rate 
exposure arising from foreign currency 
transactions and follows established risk 
management policies, including minimising 
cross currency transactions, using natural 
hedge and the use of derivatives like foreign 
exchange forward contracts to hedge 
exposure to foreign currency risk. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts in R Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 Sensitivity to Foreign Currency Risk

 The following table demonstrates the 
sensitivity in the USD, EUR, CHF, CNY and 
other currencies with all other variables held 
constant. The below impact on the Company’s 
profit before tax is based on changes in the fair 
value of unhedged foreign currency monetary 
assets and liabilities at balace sheet date:

Currencies / 
Sensitivity

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 

Increase 
by 5%

Decrease 
by 5%

Increase 
by 5%

Decrease 
by 5%

(Loss) / Gain (Loss) / Gain

USD (60.01) 60.01 (91.33) 91.33 

EUR 73.90 (73.90) 40.07 (40.07)

GBP 8.22 (8.22) 15.76 (15.76)

JPY 9.51 (9.51) 0.34 (0.34)

CHF (0.00) 0.00 0.05 (0.05)

 

II  Interest Rate Risk

 This refers to risk to Company's cash flow and 
profits on account of movement in market 
interest rates. 

 For the Company the interest risk arises mainly 
from interest bearing borrowings which are at 
floating interest rates. To mitigate interest rate 

risk, the Company closely monitors market 
interest and as appropriate makes use of 
hedged products and optimise borrowing mix 
/ composition.

III. Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

 The Company is exposed to interest rate risk 
because funds are borrowed at both fixed 
and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is 
measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for 
changes in variable interest rate.  The Company 
uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial 
instruments to manage the liquidity and fund 
requirements for its day to day operations like 
non-convertible bonds and short term loans.  
The risk is managed by the Company by 
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed 
and floating rate borrowings. 

 a. Interest Rate Risk Exposure:

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Variable rate borrowings  25,586.73  23,625.15  21,443.40 

Fixed rate borrowings  -    -    -   

Total borrowings  25,586.73  23,625.15  21,443.40 

As at the end of the reporting period, the group had the following variable rate borrowings and 
interest rate swap contracts outstanding:

Particular

As at  March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

Weighted 
average 

interest rate
Balance

% of 
total 
loans

Weighted 
average 

interest rate
Balance

% of 
total 
loans

Weighted 
average 

interest rate
Balance

% of 
total 
loans

Borrowings - Term Loan 8.36%  20,581.17 80% 7.55%  21,550.30 91% 7.95%  19,566.56 91%

Borrowings - Working Capital 8.08%  5,005.56 20% 9.25%  2,074.85 9% 9.45%  1,876.84 9%

Net exposure to cash flow  
interest rate risk

 25,586.73   23,625.15  21,443.40 
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 b. Interest Rate Sensitivity

  The following table illustrates the 
sensitivity of profit and equity to a 
reasonably possible change in interest 
rate of 50 basis point increase or decrease. 
The calculations are based on the variable 
rate borrowings outstanding at balance 
sheet date. All other parameters are held 
constant.

                                                                                   Impact on profit 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Interest rates -  increase by 50 basis points* (106.25) (90.95)

Interest rates -  decrease by 50 basis points* 106.25 90.95 

*Holding all other variables constant

IV Price Risk 

 a. Exposure

  The Company is mainly exposed to the 
price risk due to its investment in mutual 
funds and bonds. The price risk arises 
due to uncertainties about the future 
market values of these investments. In 
order to manage its price risk arising 
from investments in mutual funds, the 
Company diversifies its portfolio in 
accordance with the limits set by the risk 
management policies. 

 b  Sensitivity

  The table below summarises the impact 
of increases/decreases of 0.75% increase 
in price of Mutual Fund / Bond. 

                                                                         Impact on profit after tax

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Increase in price 0.75% (March 31, 2017 - 
0.75% ) 5.26 12.71 

Decrease in price 0.75% (March 31, 2017 - 
0.75% ) (5.26) (12.71)

 c.  As at the Balance Sheet date, net foreign 
currency payables not hedged by a 
derivative instrument or otherwise 
aggregates: R 357.42 lakhs. (March 31, 
2017 : R 3908.19 Lakhs, March 31, 2016 : 
R 5399.47 Lakhs).

Note 39: Contingent Liability Disclosure

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Excise, Customs and Service 
Tax Matters

 1,532.34  1,451.90  1,177.63 

Income Tax Matters  109.56  58.52  50.74 

Sales Tax  166.09  166.09  166.09 

Claims against Company not 
acknowledged as debts

 139.85  139.85  139.85 

Notes:

(a)  It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of 
cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution 
of the respective proceedings.

(b)  The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of 
the above contingent liabilities.

Description of Contingent Liabilities

Excise, Customs and Service Tax Matters

The Company has ongoing disputes with tax 
authorities mainly relating to availment of input 
tax credit on certain items and classfication of 
finished goods. 

Sales Tax Matters

The Company has ongoing sales tax disputes 
relating to resale of traded goods which were 
exempt from tax under BST (Bombay Sales Tax 
Act, 1959.) 

Income Tax Matters

The Company has ongoing disputes with Income 
tax authorities relating to tax treatment of certain 
items. These mainly includes disallowed expenses, 
claimed by the Company as deductions.

Note 40: Capital and Other Commitments

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

(a) Capital Commitments

Estimated value of Contracts 
in Capital Account remaining 
to be executed (Net of Capital 
Advances)  6,667.65  3,812.38  1,766.36 

(b) Other Commitments

Custom duty on pending export 
obligation for import under 
advance License  799.99  769.18  108.87 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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Note 41: Earnings Per Share

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Profit after Tax (A) (R in Lakhs)  800.05  4,053.87 

Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year (B) 

39,657,102 39,239,568

Number of Shares for Diluted Earnings Per 
Share (C)

39,657,102 39,239,568

Basic earnings per share (A)/(B) (R)  2.02  10.33 

Diluted earnings per share (A)/(C) * (R)  2.02  10.33 

Nominal value of an equity share (R)  10.00  10.00 

*43,16,666 warrants of R 75 per warrant have 
been issued and allotted to Mandawewala 
Enterprises Limited on 8th March, 2018. Such 
convertible securities could potentially dilute the 
basic earnings per share in the future, but are not 
included in the calculation of diluted earnings per 
share because they are antidilutive for the period 
presented. Refer Note 17 (a)(c) for details.

Note 42: Disclosure for Micro, Medium and Small   
Enterprises

Particulars
As at

March 31, 
2018

As at 
March 31, 

2017

 As at 
April 1, 

2016 

Principal amount due to 
suppliers registered under the 
MSMED Act and remaining 
unpaid as at year end

 45.70  55.22  91.83 

Interest due to suppliers 
registered under the MSMED 
Act and remaining unpaid as at 
year end

 -    0.02  0.13 

Interest due and payable 
towards suppliers registered 
under MSMED Act, for 
payments already made

 4.64  -    -   

Further interest remaining due 
and payable for earlier years.

 10.08  10.08  10.06 

Note 43: Disclosure pursuant to the Regulation 
34(3) read with Para A of Schedule V of SEBI 
listing Regulations, 2015

There are no loans and advances, in the nature 
of loans to firms/ companies in which directors 
are interested outstanding during the year ended 
March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016. 

Note 44: Research and Development Expenditure
Details of Research and Development expenses 
incurred during the year, debited to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss account are R 592.79 Lakhs 
(March 31, 2017: R 621.27 Lakhs) , which includes 
materials cost, power cost, employee cost and 
other expenses.   

Details of Capital Expenditure incurred during 
the year for Research and Development is given 
below: 

Particulars
As at

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017

Plant and Machinery  513.99  649.72 

Total  513.99  649.72 

Note 45: Leases

Operating Lease

The Company has taken various residential, office 
premises, godowns, equipment and vehicles under 
operating lease agreements that are renewable on 
a periodic basis at the option of both the lessor and 
the lessee. The initial tenure of lease is generally for 
two months to fifty one months.

The aggregate rental expenses of all the operating 
leases for the year are R 392.26 Lakhs (March 31, 
2017: R 298.89 Lakhs.)

Note 46: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities

There are no financial assets or financial  
liabilities which are subject to offsetting as at  
March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 1, 
2016 since, the Company neither has enforceable  
right or an intent to settle on net basis or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Further, the Company has no enforceable 
master netting arrangements and other similar 
arrangements as at March 31, 2018, March 31, 
2017 and April 1, 2016.

supriya.a
Highlight
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Note 47:  Related Party Disclosures

i. Relationships

Holding Company Mandawewala Enterprises Limited

Key Management Personnel Mr. B.A.Kale (Upto May 6, 2017)

Mr. Abhishek Mandawewala

Relatives Mr. R.R. Mandawewala

Mrs. Pratima Mandawewala

Mr. Yash Mandawewala

Mrs. Kushboo Mandawewala

Other Related parties Welspun Global Brands Limited

Mertz Estates Limited

Welspun Corp Limited

Welspun India Limited

Welspun Enterprise Limited

Welspun Pipes Inc.

Welspun Tubular LLC

Welspun Global Trade LLC

Welspun Steel Limited

Welspun USA Inc.

Alspun Infrastructure Limited

MGN Agro Properties Private Limited

Welspun Energy Private Limited

Other Related parties Welspun Renewables Energy Private 
Limited

Giant Realty Private Limited

MGN Estates Private Limited

Taipan Estates Private Limited

Babasu Realty Private Limited

Welspun Holding Private Limited

Welpsun Home Textile UK Limited

CHT Holding Limited

Christy Home Textile Limited

Welspun UK Limited

Christy UK Limited

Christy 2014 Limited

E R Kingsley Limited

Franco Agencies

Connective Infrasructure Private 
Limited

Angel Power and Steel Private Limited

Rank Marketing LLP

AYM Syntex Limited Superannuation 
Trust
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ii. Terms and Conditions        

- All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

- All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash.

Particulars

 Holding 
Company 

Enterprises Over Which Key Management Personnel Or Relatives Of Such Personnel  
Exercise Significant Influence Or Control And With Whom Transactions Have Taken Place During The Year 

 Key Management 
Personnel 

 Relatives of Key  
Management Personnel 

Mandawewala 
Enterprises 

Limited

Mertz 
Estates 
Limited 

Welspun 
India 

Limited 

Welspun 
Global 
Brands 
Limited

Welspun 
Usa Inc

Welspun 
Power And 

Steel Limited

 Mgn Agro 
Properties 

Private 
Limited 

 Aym Syntex 
Limited 

Superannuation 
Trust 

Welspun Steel 
Limited

Mr. Abhishek 
Mandawewala

Mr. 
B.A.Kale

Mr. Yash 
Mandawewala

Mrs. Kushboo 
Mandawewala

Transactions during 
the year

Intercorporate 
Deposits received

 3,700.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (2,000.00)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Issue of Equity 
Shares

 4,500.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Cross charge  13.19  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Reimbursement of 
expenses

 39.40  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Repayment of 
advance given

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -    -    -    (2.30)  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Salary  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    73.56  31.82  10.65  27.47 

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (113.66)  (173.98)  (26.13)  (27.98)

Purchase of Goods/
Services/ Expenses 
incurred

 268.27  320.41  354.55  30.38  -    -    -    7.35  32.90  -    -    -    -   

 (2.96)  (285.49)  (1.21)  (37.88)  (8.37)  -    -    -    (57.90)  -    -    -    -   

Sale of Goods  -    -    8,001.28  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    (10,997.63)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Purchase of Fixed 
Assets / Capital 
Goods

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    (0.21)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Closing Balance

Intercorporate 
Deposits received

 1,200.00  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 (2,000.00)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Debtors  -    -    687.61  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    (1,307.54)  -    -    (0.01)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

 -    -    [495.83]  -    -    [0.01]  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Creditors  -    -    18.03  -    -    -    -    0.68  22.13  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    [0.87]  -    -    -    [2.30]  -    [6.28]  -    -    -    -   

Year 2016-17 figures are given in round brackets (  ) and Year 2015-16 in square brackets [  ]. 
* Amount is inclusive of taxes
** As the liabilities for defined benefit plans and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole the amount 
pertaining to KMP's are not included in the above table.          
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Note 48: Segment information

Information about Primary Business Segment  
Identification of Segments: 

The Group is engaged in the business of Synthetic 
Yarn which in the context of Ind AS 108 on 
Segment Reporting are considered to constitute 
single primary business segment.  

The chief operational decision maker monitors the 
operating results of its Business segment separately 
for the purpose of making decision about profit or 
loss in the financial statements, Operating segment 
have been identified on the basis of Geographical 
segment and other quantitative criteria specified in 
the Ind AS 108.

i.  Segment Revenue :

 The segment revenue is measured in the 
same way as in the statement of profit or loss.

Segment 
Revenue

2018 2017

India Outside 
India

Total India Outside 
India

Total

Total 
segmental 
revenue*

58,718.68 27,398.35 86,117.04 66,136.47 16,665.28 82,801.75 

*excluding other income

The Company is domiciled in India.  The amount 
of its revenue from external customers broken 
down by location of the customers is shown in the 
table below.

Revenue from outside India
Year ended
March 31, 

2018

Year ended 
March 31, 

2017

Australia and New Zealand  5,894.15  3,463.59  

European Union  2,876.44  1,305.02

U.K.  2,520.20  1,548.65

U.S.A  2,034.64  1,449.58

Others  14,072.92  8,898.44

Total  27,398.35  16,665.28

ii. Segment Assets :

 Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets are 
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset. 

Segment assets
As at  March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

India
Outside 

India
Total India

Outside 
India

Total India
Outside 

India
Total

Carrying amount of segment assets 52,462.55 5,403.67 57,866.22  44,636.79  2,791.58  47,428.37  38,712.09  2,740.99 41,453.08 

Additions to non-current assets# 6,890.68  -    6,890.68  7,554.04  -    7,554.04  9,933.14  -    9,933.14 

Total segment assets 59,353.23 5,403.67 64,756.90  52,190.83  2,791.58  54,982.41  48,645.23  2,740.99 51,386.22 

Unallocated:

Deferred tax assets (net)  2,460.87  2,318.60  2,061.15 

Investments  701.09  1,707.09  14.81 

Balance sheet Assets 67,918.87  59,008.10 53,462.18 

# Additions to non-current assets also includes expenditure incurred on capital work-in-progress and capital advances.

iii.  Segment Liabilities :         

 Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements.  These liabilities 
are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the liability. 

Segment liabilities
As at  March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 1, 2016

India
Outside 

India
Total India

Outside 
India

Total India
Outside 

India
Total

Carrying amount of segment 
liabilities

 11,999.12  532.29 12,531.41  11,699.35  249.26  11,948.61  12,335.70 249.23 12,584.93 

Additions to non-current 
liabilities#

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total segment liabilities  11,999.12  532.29 12,531.41  11,699.35  249.26  11,948.61  12,335.70  249.23 12,584.93 

Unallocated:

Borrowings 25,586.73  23,625.15 21,443.40 

Balance sheet Liabilities 38,118.14  35,573.76 34,028.33 

# Additions to non-current liabilities also includes external commercial borrowings (ECB).
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Note 49: First Time Adoption of Ind As

Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company’s first separate financial 
statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS 
applicable as at March 31, 2018.

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been 
applied in preparing the financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2018, the comparative 
information presented in these financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and 
in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance 
sheet as at April 1, 2016 (the date of transition). 
In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, 
the Company has restated the amounts reported 
previously in financial statements prepared in 
accordance with the accounting standards notified 
under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2014 and other relevant provisions of the Act 
(previous GAAP or Indian GAAP) so as to comply 
in all material respects with Ind AS.

A. Exemptions and Exceptions Availed 

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 
optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions 
applied in the transition from previous GAAP to 
Ind AS.

A.1  Ind AS Optional Exemptions 

 a.  Deemed cost for Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) and Intangible assets 

  Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter 
to elect to continue with the carrying 
value for all of its property, plant and 
equipment as recognised in the financial 
statements as at the date of transition to 
Ind AS, measured as per the previous 
GAAP and use that as its deemed 
cost as at the date of transition after 
making necessary adjustments for de-
commissioning liabilities. This exemption 
is also applicable for intangible assets 
covered by Ind AS 38.

  Accordingly, the Company has elected 
to measure all of its property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets at their 
previous GAAP carrying value.

 b. Long-term Foreign Currency Monetary 
Items 

  A first-time adopter may continue 
the policy adopted for accounting for 
exchange differences arising from 
translation of long-term foreign currency 
monetary items recognised in the 
financial statements for the period ending 
immediately before the beginning of the 
first Ind AS financial reporting period as 
per the previous GAAP.

  Accordingly, the Company has elected 
to continue the current accounting policy 
adopted for accounting of exchange 
differences arising from translation of long-
term foreign currency monetary items 
recognised in the financial statements 
prior to date of transition (April 1, 2016).

  The exemption in D13AA relates to 
accounting for foreign exchange 
differences on long term foreign currency 
monetary items recognised in the financial 
statement only, and it does not relate to 
the accounting for long term forward 
exchange contracts (as these contracts 
are not within scope of Ind AS 21 and are 
treated in accordance with Ind AS 109). 
Therefore, the Company cannot continue 
to apply the provisions of paragraph 
46/46A of AS 11 to long-term forward 
exchange contracts by virtue of availing 
exemption given in paragraph D13AA of 
Ind AS 101.

A.2  Mandatory Exceptions Applied

 a.  Estimates

  An entity’s estimates in accordance with 
Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind 
AS shall be consistent with estimates 
made for the same date in accordance 
with previous GAAP (after adjustments 
to reflect any difference in accounting 
policies), unless there is objective 
evidence that those estimates were in 
error.

  Upon an assessment of the estimates 
made under Previous GAAP, the 
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Company has concluded that there was 
no necessity to revise such estimates 
under Ind AS, except where estimates 
were required by Ind AS and not required 
by Previous GAAP.

 b. De-recognition of Financial Assets and 
Liabilities

  Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter 
to apply the de-recognition provisions of 
Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions 
occurring on or after the date of transition 
to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows 
a first-time adopter to apply the de-
recognition requirements in Ind AS 
109 retrospectively from a date of the 

entity’s choosing, provided that the 
information needed to apply Ind AS 
109 to financial assets and financial 
liabilities derecognised as a result of 
past transactions was obtained at the 
time of initially accounting for those 
transactions.    

 c.  Classification and Measurement of 
Financial Assets 

  Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess 
classification and measurement of 
financial assets (investment in debt 
instruments) on the basis of the facts and 
circumstances that exist at the date of 
transition to Ind AS.
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Ind AS 101 requires reconciliations of its equity 
reported in accordance with previous GAAP 
to its equity in accordance with Ind AS and a 
reconciliation to its total comprehensive income 
in accordance with Ind AS for the latest period in 
the entity's most recent Annual Financial statment.

AYM Syntex limited has chosen to provide 
reconciliation of amount reported in accordance 
with previous GAAP to amount reported under 
Ind AS for each line item of Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and Loss as an additional 
disclosure.  

Reconciliation of equity as at April 1, 2016 (date of transition) 

Particulars Note
Previous  
GAAP *

Ind AS 
adjustments

Ind AS

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 28,191.39 -   28,191.39 

Capital work-in-progress 1,414.36  -   1,414.36 

Intangible assets 41.71  -   41.71 

Financial assets

-Investments B.4 0.18 14.63 14.81 

-Others  15.29  -   15.29 

Deferred tax assets (net) B.9  2,072.66 (11.51) 2,061.15 

Other non-current assets 1,178.85  -   1,178.85 

Total non-current assets  32,914.44 3.12  32,917.56 

Current assets

Inventories 5,669.52  -      5,669.52 

Financial assets

-Trade receivables 6,313.29  -   6,313.29 

- Cash and cash equivalents 3,836.12  -   3,836.12 

-Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents above  1,657.38  -   1,657.38 

- Loans 39.12  -   39.12 

-Others  162.33  -   162.33 

Other current assets 2,866.88  -   2,866.88 

Total current assets  20,544.64  -    20,544.64 

Total assets  53,459.08 3.12  53,462.20 
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Particulars Note
Previous  
GAAP *

Ind AS 
adjustments

Ind AS

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital 3,923.96  -   3,923.96 

Other equity B.8  15,488.15 21.76  15,509.91 

Total equity  19,412.11 21.76  19,433.87 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

-  Borrowings B.2 16,701.68 (20.08) 16,681.60 

Employee Benefit Obligation  452.14  -   452.14 

Total non-current liabilities  17,153.82 (20.08)  17,133.74 

Current liabilities  

Financial liabilities

-   Borrowings 1,876.84  -   1,876.84 

-  Trade payables 10,001.20 0 10,001.20 

- Others B.3 3,331.56 1.44 3,333.00 

Employee Benefit Obligation  715.69 0 715.69 

Current tax liabilities (net)  365.03  -   365.03 

Other current liabilities  602.83  -   602.83 

Total current liabilities  16,893.15  1.44  16,894.59 

Total liabilities  34,046.97 (18.64)  34,028.33 

Total equity and liabilities 53,459.08 3.12 53,462.20 

'* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March, 2017

Particulars Note
Previous  
GAAP *

Ind AS 
adjustments

Ind AS

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment B.3  32,853.19 (22.96)  32,830.23 

Capital work-in-progress B.2  1,668.13 (36.06)  1,632.07 

Intangible assets  66.52  -    66.52 

Financial assets  -   

-Investments B.4  0.16 12.87  13.03 

-Other financial assets  26.49  -    26.49 

Deferred tax assets (net) B.9  2,323.03 (4.43)  2,318.60 

Other non-current assets  1,222.36  -    1,222.36 

Total non-current assets  38,159.88 (50.58)  38,109.30 

Current assets

Inventories  7,700.00  -    7,700.00 

Financial assets

-Investments B.4  1,684.66  9.39  1,694.06 

-Trade receivables  6,120.71  -    6,120.71 

- Cash and cash equivalents  913.86 0  913.86 

-Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents above  1,494.82 0  1,494.82 

- Loans  71.20  -    71.20 

-Other financial assets  121.09  -    121.09 

Other current assets  2,783.05  -    2,783.05 

Total current assets  20,889.39 9.39  20,898.79 

Total assets  59,049.27 (41.18)  59,008.09 
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Particulars Note
Previous  
GAAP *

Ind AS 
adjustments

Ind AS

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital  3,923.96  -    3,923.96 

Other equity B.8  19,502.01  8.36  19,510.37 

Total equity  23,425.97 8.36  23,434.33 

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

-  Borrowings B.2  18,025.15 (50.71)  17,974.44 

Employee Benefit Obligation  593.90  -    593.90 

Total non-current liabilities  18,619.05 (50.71)  18,568.34 

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

-   Borrowings  2,074.85  -    2,074.85 

-  Trade payables  9,169.43  -    9,169.43 

- Other financial liabilities B.3  4,503.08  1.17  4,504.25 

Employee Benefit Obligation  565.06  -    565.06 

Other current liabilities  691.83  -    691.83 

Total current liabilities  17,004.25  1.17  17,005.42 

Total liabilities  35,623.30 (49.54)  35,573.76 

Total equity and liabilities  59,049.27 (41.18)  59,008.09 

'* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March, 2017

Particulars Note
Previous 
GAAP *

Ind AS 
adjustments

Ind AS

Income

Revenue from operations B.1, B.7 78,682.07  4,119.68 82,801.75

Finance income  -    -    -   

Other income B.3, B.4 393.49 (15.02) 378.47

Total Income 79,075.56 4,104.66 83,180.22

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 42,017.59  -   42,017.59

Changes in inventories of finished goods and goods-in-process (1,310.57)  -   (1,310.57)

Excise duty on sale of goods B.1  -    4,867.66 4,867.66

Employee benefits expense B.5 5,916.78 (81.68) 5,835.10

Finance costs B.2 2,267.05 5.47 2,272.52

Depreciation and amortization expense 3,027.25  -   3,027.25

Other expenses B.7 22,409.47 (747.98) 21,661.49

Total expenses 74,327.57 4,043.47 78,371.04

Profit before tax 4,747.99 61.19 4,809.18

Tax expense

Current tax 984.49  -   984.49

Deferred tax charge/(credit) B.9 (250.35) 21.17 (229.18)

Total tax expense 734.14 21.17 755.31

Profit for the year 4,013.85 40.02 4,053.87

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plan B.5  -   (81.68) (81.68)

 Income tax effect on above B.5  -   28.27 28.27

Other comprehensive income for the year  -   (53.41) (53.41)

Total comprehensive income for the year 4,013.85 (13.39) 4,000.46

'* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confirm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Reconciliations of equity and total comprehensive 
income reported under previous GAAP to equity 
under Ind AS

i.  Reconciliations of Total Equity as at March 
31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

 

Particluars Note
As at  

March 31, 
2017

As at  
April 1, 

2016

Equity as per previous Indian GAAP 23,425.97 19,412.11

Effects of measuring financial 
instruments at fair value through profit 
and loss

B.3,  
B.4

(1.86) 13.19

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost

B.2 14.65 20.08

Deferred tax impact on above 
adjustments

B.9 (4.43) (11.51)

Equity as per Ind AS 23,434.33 19,433.86

ii. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 

Particulars Note
March 

31, 2017

Net profit as per previous Indian GAAP 4,013.85

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost B.2 (5.47)

Effect of measuring financial instruments at fair value B.4 7.50

Forward contracts measured at fair value through 
profit or loss

B.3 (22.52)

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans B.5 81.68

Deferred tax impacts on above adjustments B.9 (21.17)

Profit after tax as per Ind AS 4,053.87

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) B.5 (53.41)

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 4,000.46

iii.  Impact of Ind AS adoption on the Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 
2017

Particulars
Previous 

GAAP
Adjustments Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating 
activities

5,597.54 267.94 5,865.48

Net cash flow from investing 
activities

(8,716.69) (2.80) (8,719.49)

Net cash flow from financing 
activities

196.87 (265.14) (68.27)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents

(2,922.28) - (2,922.28)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 
April 1, 2016

3,836.12 - 3,836.12

Cash and cash equivalents as at 
March 31, 2017

913.84 - 913.84

Notes to First-Time Adoption:
Revenue From Operations
B.1 Excise Duty
 Under the previous GAAP, revenue from 

sale of products was presented exclusive of 
excise duty. Under Ind AS, revenue from sale 
of goods is presented inclusive of excise duty.
The excise duty paid is presented on the face 
of the Statement of Profit and Loss as part 
of expenses. This change has resulted in an 
increase in total revenue and total expenses 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 by  
R 4,867.66 lakhs. There is no impact on the 
total equity and profit.

B.2 Transaction Cost Incurred for Loan Taken
 Under the previous GAAP, loan processing 

expenses and other transaction costs are 
accounted as expense under the profit and 
loss account or are capitalised (if loan is 
taken for borrowings) in the year in which it is 
incurred. Under Ind AS, for financial liabilities 
(borrowings) measured at amortised cost, 
transaction cost are included in the calculation 
of effective interest rate (EIR) - in effect, 
they are amortised through profit or loss/ 
capitalised over the term of the instrument. 
As a result of this change, the profit for the 
year ended March 31, 2017 decreased by R 
5.47 lakhs. The total equity as at March 31, 
2017 increased by net of Rs 14.65 lakhs (April 
1, 2016: R 20.08 lakhs) on this account.

B.3 Fair Valuation of Forward Contracts
 Under the previous GAAP, the premium or 

discount arising at the inception of foreign 
exchange forward contracts (except on 
contracts related to long term monetary 
item) entered into to hedge an existing 
asset / liability, were amortised as expense 
or income over the life of the contract. 
Exchange differences on such contracts were 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the reporting period in which the exchange 
rate changes. Exchange difference on forward 
contracts against long term borrowings for 
capital assets were capitalised under Para 
46/46A of AS 11.

 Under the IND AS 109, foreign exchange 
forward contracts are carried at fair value and 
the resultant gains /(losses) are recorded in 
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the Statement of Profit and Loss only and are 
not capitalised, even if incurred on forward 
contracts against long term borrowings. As 
a result of this change, the profit for the year 
ended March 31, 2017 decreased by R 22.52 
lakhs. Fair valuation resulted in net decrease of 
equity by R 24.13 lakhs as at March 31, 2017 
(April 1, 2016: R 1.44 lakhs). 

B.4 Fair Valuation of Investments
 Under the previous GAAP, investments 

were classified as long-term investments or 
current investments based on the intended 
holding period and realisability. Long-term 
investments were carried at cost less provision 
for other than temporary decline in the value 
of such investments. Current investments were 
carried at lower of cost and fair value. Under 
Ind AS, these investments are required to be 
measured at fair value at initial and subsequent 
recognition at fair value through profit and 
loss (FVTPL). The resulting fair value changes 
of these investments have been recognised in 
retained earnings as at the date of transition 
and subsequently in the profit or loss for the 
year ended March 31, 2017. As a result of this 
change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 
2017 increased by Rs. 7.50 lakhs. This increased 
the retained earnings by Rs. 22.26 lakhs as at 
March 31, 2017 ( increased in April 1, 2016: Rs. 
14.63 lakhs).

B.5 Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plans
 Under the previous GAAP, remeasurements 

i.e. actuarial gains and losses on the net 
defined benefit liability were recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind 
AS, these remeasurements are recognised in 
other comprehensive income instead of the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. As a result of this 
change, the profit for the year ended March 

31, 2017 increased by Rs. 53.41 lakhs (net of 
deferred tax of Rs. 28.27 lakhs). There is no 
impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2017.

B.6 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
 Under previous GAAP, the Company was not 

required to present other comprehensive income 
(OCI) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian 
GAAP profit or loss to profit or loss as per Ind-
AS. Further, Ind-AS profit or loss is reconciled to 
total comprehensive income as per Ind-AS.

B.7 Variable Consideration
 Under previous GAAP, claims, discounts and 

rebates paid to customers were recorded as 
part of expenses in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. However, under IND AS, these expenses 
are netted off against revenue. This change has 
resulted in decrease in total revenue and total 
expenses for the year ended March 31, 2017 by 
Rs. 747.98 lakhs. There is no impact on the total 
equity and profit.

B.8 Retained Earnings
 Retained earnings as at April 1, 2016 have 

been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS 
transition adjustments, net impact of which, as 
on March 31, 2017 is R 8.36 lakhs (April 1, 2016: 
R 21.76 lakhs).

B.9 Tax Adjustments
 Tax adjustments include deferred tax impact on 

account of differences between previous GAAP 
and Ind AS. As a result of this change, the profit 
for the year ended March 31, 2017 decreased 
by R 21.17 lakhs. The net deferred tax liability 
increased by R 4.43 lakhs as on March 31, 
2017 (increased by R 11.51 lakhs as at April 1, 
2016). 

Note 50: Events Occurring After the Reporting Date
 No adjustments on account of events occuring 

after the reporting date have been identified to 
the figures reported.
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